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DREAMGATE1DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

Dreamgate Corporation Bhd. (“DCB” or “the Company” throughout the entire Annual Report) was incorporated on16 January 2003 under the Malaysian Companies Act 1965. It was initially listed on the MESDAQ Market of theBursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia” throughout the entire Annual Report) on 13 January 2004.On 31 January 2008, its listing was successfully transferred to the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia.
DCB is primarily an investment holding company with subsidiary and associate companies (“DCB Group” or “theGroup”) involved in investment holding, manufacturing, sales and distribution as well as providing technicalsupport and maintenance services of gaming and amusement machines and equipment and management ofgaming establishments, clubs and resorts.
The history of DCB’s involvement with the gaming industry began way back in 1986 through its wholly ownedsubsidiary, RGB Sdn. Bhd. (“RGBSB”). Through RGBSB, DCB is acknowledged as a premier supplier of gamingmachines and equipment in Asia.
Today, the Group is also a major operator of concession programs in Asia and has diversified into hospitality andleisure as well.



We are committed to excel and are driven by the desire tobe achievers in our industry. The commitment toexcellence sprang forth from a strong foundation of COREVALUES:
• Our people, our key assets- The continuous development of our human capital- Upholds high standards of ethics, integrity and honesty
• Quality- Striving for the best in quality of service and products
• Corporate leadership- Operate in an efficient manner to ensure high returns at all times to our shareholders- Focus on growth guided by good corporate governance and financial discipline
• Corporate social responsibility- Meeting our social obligations

To be the premier Integrated GamingSolutions Specialist focusing on themanufacturing, distribution, operationsand management of gaming andamusement machines that provide theultimate recreational experience toconsumers; and
To be a leader in the hospitality andleisure industry in providing the higheststandards of customer care and service

CORE VALUESMISSION
Our VISION is to be the leadingmanufacturer, distributor and operator inthe gaming industry and the leadingprovider of hospitality and leisure services

VISION
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Proforma Consolidated Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2003 and Audited Consolidated Income Statement for the YearsEnded 31 Dec 2004, 31 Dec 2005, 31 Dec 2006 and 31 Dec 2007
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Revenue 80,963 115,347 154,099 215,380 276,307
EBITDA* 17,069 26,480 49,184 69,529 87,228Amortisation (11) (11) (82) (154) (308)Depreciation (3,040) (7,769) (19,293) (31,219) (41,009)Interest (283) (251) (1,937) (4,877) (6,620)
Profit Before Tax 13,735 18,449 27,872 33,279 39,291Taxation (1,076) (211) (80) (1,809) (977)Minority Interest 1 - - - (13)
Net Profit 12,660 18,238 27,792 31,470 38,301
EBITDA* Margin 21% 23% 32% 32% 32%Profit Before Tax Margin 17% 16% 18% 15% 14%
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Share in issue ('000) 616,716 840,000 840,000 843,629 868,334
EPS (sen) - Basic # 2.05 2.18 3.31 3.73 4.43EPS (sen) - Diluted # - - 3.31 3.67 4.34Revenue growth 90% 42% 34% 40% 28%Net profit growth 34% 44% 52% 13% 22%
* Earning Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation & Amortisation# The EPS has been restated to take into account the effect of the issue of bonus shares on profit for those years.

Proforma Consolidated Segmental Information for the Year Ended 31 December 2003 and Audited Consolidated Segmental Information for theYears Ended 31 Dec 2004, 31 Dec 2005, 31 Dec 2006 and 31 Dec 2007
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

RevenueSales & Marketing 59,887 89,047 93,145 121,299 152,860Technical Support & Management 14,796 26,355 61,361 90,080 119,214Others 6,280 977 1,028 4,927 4 ,718Eliminations (1,032) (1,435) (926) (485)
80,963 115,347 154,099 215,380 276,307

Pretax ProfitSales & Marketing 6,588 8,539 5,104 9,348 15,769Technical Support & Management 6,806 12,800 27,815 37,142 41,784Others 341 (2,890) (5,047) (13,211) (18,262)
13,735 18,449 27,872 33,279 39,291
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GROUP CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Dreamgate Corporation Bhd
(603831-K)
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RGB Ltd.100%Labuan F.T.

RepresentativeOffice of Dreamgate Corporation Bhd.Lao PDR

Data Touch Sdn. Bhd.100%

Frontier Wish International Limited100%Hong Kong 

Macrocept Sdn. Bhd.100%

RGB Sdn. Bhd.100%

Dreamgate (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.100%

RGB Xtale Sdn. Bhd.50%

RGB Abbiati Pte. Ltd.50%

CDI Corporation Sdn. Bhd.60%

RGB (Cambodia) Ltd.100%

Star RGB Corporation40%Philippines

Cron Corporation50%Japan

RGB OMMCO Ltd.65%Labuan F.T.

RGB (Macau) Limited96%Macau

RGB Ltd. (Philippine Branch)

Dreamgate Holding Co., Ltd.49%

RGB Sibel International Sdn. Bhd.(Formerly known as Ideal Versatile Sdn. Bhd.)50%

Chateau De Bavet Club Co., Ltd.60%

Golden Beach Club Ltd.50%

Cash Box Entertainment Co., Ltd.20%

GoldenMac Ltd.25%

Mekong Recreation Club Ltd.70%

Olympic Entertainment Co., Ltd.20%

Rainbow World Club Ltd.20%

Players Club Co., Ltd. 35%

Club 88 Co., Ltd.100%

6

The Resident RepresentativeOffice in Vietnam Note: Except where specifically mentioned
Incorporated in Malaysia
Incorporated in Singapore
Incorporated in Cambodia



STRONG

TEAMWORK

The spirit that drives the success ofDreamgate Corporation Bhd.
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Mr. Ooi Teng Chew Independent Non-Executive Chairman, Malaysian, age 62
Mr. Ooi Teng Chew has been a board member since 30 October 2003and assumed the position as Chairman of the Board on 17 March2004. He chairs the Audit Committee and serves as member on theRemuneration, Nomination and Employee Share Option Scheme(“ESOS”) Committees.
Mr. Ooi is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofEngland and Wales, the Malaysian Institute of Certified PublicAccountant and the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He was inpublic practice since 1975 and retired from an international firm ofaccountants in 2001.
He attended all 6 board meetings held in the financial year and hasno conflict of interests with DCB. Mr. Ooi also does not have anyfamily relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of theGroup.

Dato' Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T.Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, Malaysian, age 65
Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 28 April 2006, and assumed the positionof Senior Independent Non-Executive Director of the Board on 18April 2007. He is the Chairman of the Nomination, Remuneration andESOS Committees and also serves as member of the AuditCommittee.
Dato’ Mahinder was conferred the Degree of an Utter Barrister in1972 by Lincoln’s Inn, London and was admitted as an Advocate &Solicitor, Malaya a year later. He has been in legal practice for morethan 34 years and specialises in land, contract and corporate laws.
Dato’ Mahinder was twice elected as the Chairman of the Penang BarCommittee and a member of the Bar Council over that period.
Dato’ Mahinder does not have any conflict of interest with DCB norhave any family relationship with any director and/or majorshareholder of the Group. He has attended all 6 board meetingsconvened during the year.
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Datuk Chuah sits on the board of certain subsidiary and associatecompanies of DCB and several other private limited companies.He had attended all the 6 meetings convened in the financial year.
He is the eldest brother of Mr. Chuah Kim Chiew and he does not haveany conflict of interest with the Group.

Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP Group Managing Director, Malaysian, age 55
Datuk Chuah was appointed to the Board on 30 October 2003. He isalso a member of the Remuneration and ESOS Committees.
At DCB, he has extensive knowledge of the amusement and gamingindustry and he is primarily responsible for the development ofstrategic business direction, plans and policies. He also directs theevaluation of strategic business alliances and synergistic businessventures of the Group.
He is a Fellow of the Association for Chartered Certified Accountantsand a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
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Mr. Chuah Kim ChiewGroup Executive Director, Malaysian, age 45
Mr. Chuah Kim Chiew was appointed to the Board on 30 October2003. He is a graduate of University of Waseda with a Bachelor inBusiness Administration.
His ties to the Group began more than two decades ago when he wasappointed a director of RGBSB. He was initially focused oncoordinating backroom support activities for technical services andsales and marketing functions. In 2003, he was instrumental formoving the Group into research and development by forming apartnership with Japanese games developers. It grew into fullfledged effort for the development of games that were not catered forunder existing distributorship arrangements.
In his capacity as head of Research and Development (“R&D”),Mr. Chuah is actively involved in the development of games under theRGBGames brand. In addition to R&D, Mr. Chuah oversees Securityand Surveillance function for the Group.
Mr. Chuah also sits on the board of several subsidiaries and associatecompanies of DCB and has no conflict of interest with DCB.He attended all 6 board meetings held in the financial year. Mr. Chuahis the youngest brother of Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP.

Mr. Steven Lim Tow BoonGroup Executive Director, Malaysian, age 47
Appointed to the board on 30 October 2003, Mr. Lim is responsiblefor the development of strategic plan and the daily operationalmanagement for the sales, services and marketing function for theGroup.
Mr. Lim graduated from Brock University, Canada in 1985 with aBachelor of Arts degree majoring in Administrative Studies. He joinedthe Group in 1988 as Management Executive for the marketing ofgaming and amusement machines. Mr. Lim has more than 20 yearsof experience in sales and marketing and has been instrumental ingrowing the Group’s market share of the gaming industry.
Mr. Lim is also a director of several subsidiary and associatecompanies of the Group. He has no conflict of interest with DCB andhad attended all 6 board meetings held in the financial year. Mr. Limalso does not have any family relationship with any director and/ormajor shareholder of the Group.
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Mr. Wong Chee FaiGroup Executive Director, Malaysian, age 54
Appointed to the board on 30 October 2003, Mr. Wong is principallyresponsible for the treasury function for the Group. In this capacity,he ensures safe custody of the funds generated from the variousoperations of the Group throughout the countries where the Groupoperates.
Mr. Wong was initially involved in general trading before joining theGroup in 1994.
He also sits on the board of several subsidiary and associatecompanies of DCB and has no conflict of interest with DCB. Mr. Wonghad attended 5 out of 6 board meetings held in the financial year.
He does not have any family relationship with any director and/ormajor shareholder of the Group.

Note:Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP and Mr. Chuah Kim Chiew are brothers. DatukChuah and En. Mazlan are also substantial shareholders of DCB. All Directorsalso do not have had any conviction for offences within the past ten years.None of the Directors hold directorships in other public listed companies.

En. Mazlan bin IsmailGroup Executive Director, Malaysian, age 45
En. Mazlan was appointed to the Board on 30 October 2003 and is amember of the Audit and ESOS Committees. He is principallyresponsible for investor relations, regulatory compliance, corporatecommunication and credit control functions for the Group.
He started his career as Senior Audit Assistant with Chuah &Associates in 1988. In 1991, he left to join Juruniaga Sdn. Bhd.,a government contracting firm, as Project Manager where he wasresponsible for providing outsourced services to the public servicedepartment. He is currently a director of Institut Teknologi DanPengurusan Victoria Sdn. Bhd., a private institution of higher learningwhich he joined in 1997.
En. Mazlan holds a Diploma in Management from the MalaysianInstitute of Management (“MIM”) and is an Associate of MIM since1999.
He sits on the board of several associate and subsidiary companiesof the Group. He attended all 6 board meetings held in the financialyear and has no conflict of interests with DCB. En. Mazlan also doesnot have any family relationship with any director and/or majorshareholder of the Group.
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Lee Yap Kuan, MaxineGroup Corporate & HR Director, Malaysian
Ms. Lee was appointed the Group Corporate& HR Director in 2007. She has 20 years ofexperience in corporate secretarial andgeneral management with increasingresponsibilities before assuming herdirectorship. In her current capacity, Ms. Leeoversees the implementation of strategicpolicies and operational management foradministrative, human resource, training anddevelopment and corporate compliancefunctions for the Group.
She joined the Group in 1998 as CompanySecretary and was subsequently promotedto General Manager of the Corporate & HRDivision. Prior to joining the Group, she was

Teh Mun HuiGroup Finance Director, Malaysian
Ms. Teh is the Group Finance Director since2007. She is responsible for the financialmanagement and corporate financefunctions for the Group. Ms. Teh wasinvolved in the Group's initial public listingand subsequent corporate and investmentexercises, risk management and thedevelopment of internal control systems forthe Group.
Ms. Teh started her career with ArthurAndersen & Co. (now Ernst & Young) in 1997before leaving as Audit Senior three yearslater. Since joining the Group in 2001 asFinance Manager, she had held several key

with Farlim Group (M) Bhd. for 3 years whereshe was the Assistant Company Secretary.Earlier, she was with several well knowncorporate secretarial services providerswhere she honed her skills and knowledge.
Ms. Lee is a graduate of Kolej Tunku AbdulRahman in 1989 with a Diploma in BusinessAdministration and is also an AssociateMember of the Institute of CharteredSecretaries and Administrators, UK since1993.
She is also the Group Company Secretaryand a board member of several associateand subsidiary companies of the Group.

financial and management positions withincreasing responsibilities and scope beforeassuming her present position.
She graduated from University Malaya with aBachelor in Accounting degree with firstclass honors in 1997 and obtained theMalaysian Institute of Certified PublicAccountants ("MICPA") qualifications in1998. Ms. Teh is a member of the MalaysianInstitute of Accountants and MICPA.
In addition, Ms. Teh is also a director ofseveral associate and subsidiary companiesof the Group.
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Chuah Kee YongGroup Technology Director, Malaysian
Mr. Chuah is the Group Technology Directorof DCB Group since 2007 where he isresponsible for the manufacturing operations,information technology and technicalservices for the Group. He was the GeneralManager-Technical Division prior to hiscurrent position. Mr. Chuah was formerlywith Intel Technology Sdn Bhd. before joiningRGBSB in 1999. At RGBSB, he has served in various capacities with increasingresponsibilities and seniority until heassumed his directorship.

Mr. Chuah graduated from Universiti SainsMalaysia in 1996 with an honors degree inApplied Science. He also earned an MBAfrom the same university in 2003. Mr. Chuahis an affiliate member of the IEEE ComputerSociety, a United States based society forelectrical engineers since 2002. In a careerspanning more than 15 years, Mr. Chuah hasextensive experience in technical andgeneral management in both commercialand manufacturing environment.
Mr. Chuah also sits on the board of certainother associate and subsidiary companies ofthe Group.

Cheah Swee WaiGeneral Manager - Technical Support &Management ("TSM"), Malaysian
Mr. Cheah is the General Manager of theTSM division since 2008. He is responsiblefor the operational management,development and implementation ofconcession programs, casinos and hotels inCambodia, Vietnam, Lao PDR and thePhilippines.
He started his career in 1999 as OperationsManagement Trainee with RGB Ltd., a whollyowned subsidiary of DCB, for overseas

outlets initially in Cambodia and advanced inseniority to assume greater accountabilityand work scope. He was the Deputy GeneralManager prior to his current position.
Mr. Cheah received a Bachelor of Commercedegree from Deakin University, Australia.
He is also a director of certain subsidiary andassociate companies of the Group.
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Ganaser KaliappenGeneral Manager - RegulatoryCompliance, Malaysian
Mr. K. Ganaser joined the Group in 2004 andis primarily responsible for licensingcompliance with regulatory authorities in thevarious countries where the Group operates.
He received a Bachelor of Arts degree and aDiploma in Education from UniversityMalaya. Mr. Ganaser also holds a Diploma inPublic Management from National Instituteof Public Training and a Master in Public &International Affairs from University ofPittsburgh, USA.

Chiang Lai FattGeneral Manager - Sales, Malaysian
Mr. Chiang was appointed to his presentposition in January 2008. He is tasked togenerate sales growth in both amusementand gaming machines in Asia as well asdrive business development further in othermarkets.
Prior to his present appointment, Mr. Chiangwas the Sales Manager of the Group.He spent 2 years with Rex Industry Bhd. as

Head of Industrial Packaging Division beforejoining the Group in 2004.
Mr. Chiang holds a B. Commerce degreefrom Southern Queensland University,Australia.

Mr. K. Ganaser started his career with theAdministrative and Diplomatic Service of theGovernment where he served for 25 years.He spent 19 years in various divisions of theMinistry of Finance managing financialcontrol, gaming licensing and regulatorycompliance matters. His last posting prior tojoining the Group was as Director withMinistry of Defence.



David OvertonOperations Director - Phnom Penh regionin Cambodia, British
Mr. Overton joined the Group in 2006 asOperations Director for the TSM in PhnomPenh region, Cambodia. He is responsible forthe daily operational and managementfunctions of the casinos, clubs andconcession programs in Phnom Penh.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Overton waswith IG Americas Mexico as OperationsDirector. He was responsible for slotsoperations (inclusive of slot operations and

player trend analysis) and participated in thedevelopment of new operations inclusive ofplanning for manpower, training and layout.
Earlier, he was with several major casinooperators in Asia and South Africa where hegained more than 20 years of experience inthe gaming industry covering slotsoperations analysis, sales and marketing aswell as TSM.
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Wentworth Macquarie HillCEO - CDI Corporation Sdn. Bhd.,New Zealander
Mr. Hill co-founded CDI Corporation Sdn.Bhd. ("CDI") in 2002 to develop gamingsignage, 3-D gaming animations and slotmachine contents for the Asian market.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Economics) anda Master of Commerce, both from theUniversity of New South Wales, Sydney,Australia.

He has accumulated 19 years of experiencein the gaming industry in slot machinemarketing and manufacturing, gamingsignage design, marketing and manufacturing,and progressive systems marketing.



Bringing Excitement AndFun To A New Level...

introduces
MR. HOT ROCK 

AND HIS LINK

PROGRESSIVE
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DEAR VALUED SHAREHOLDERS,
On behalf of the Board of Directors of Dreamgate Corporation Bhd. ("DCB"),it gives me great pleasure to present to you the Annual Report and FinancialStatements of your Company and the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2007.

FINANCIAL HIGHLGHTS
The Group continues to achieve strong growth in revenue and profits in the year ended 31 December 2007, as follows:
• Group revenue increased by 28% from RM215.38 million to RM276.31 million
• Profit before tax amounted to RM39.29 million, an 18% improvement over RM33.28 million achieved in the previous year
• Net profit increased by 22% from RM31.47 million last year to RM38.30 million in financial year 2007
• Earnings per share rose by 19% from 3.73 sen last year to 4.43 sen this year

Revenue (RM’000)
0706050403

276,307
215,380154,099

115,34780,963
0706050403

39,291
33,27927,872

18,44913,735

0706050403

4.43
3.733.312.182.05

Profit Before Tax (RM’000)

EPS (Sen) - Basic
0706050403

38,301
31,47027,79218,23812,660

Net Profit (RM’000)
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DIVIDEND
After due consideration of the financial position of the Group and future growth plans, the Board isrecommending the payment of a first and final dividend, in respect of the fiscal year ended 31 December 2007, of0.68 sen per ordinary share of 10 sen each which consists of 0.50 sen less 26% income tax and 0.18 sen tax exempt dividend.

AWARDS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
During the year, the Company was awarded the No. 2 position for the “KPMG/The Edge Shareholder Value Awards 2006 – Leisure Sector”.This is a testimony to our commitment to create value for shareholders.

The Company was also the recipient of thePlatinum Award under 1st Top 50 EnterpriseAwards Malaysia 2007 organised by the YoungEntrepreneurs’ Association of Malaysia. Theaward was given in recognition of the Group’soutstanding achievements and exponentialgrowth and contributions to the economy.

Advertisment in conjunction with the 2006 KPMG Shareholder Value Awards- Leisure Sector

Plantinum Award under first Top 50 Enterprise Award Malaysia 2007
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CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT 
On the corporate front, the year under review has indeed been eventful.
The Company obtained the approval of the Securities Commission to issue Commercial Papers and or Medium Term (“CP/MTN”) Notes of upto RM200 million. It also increased its paid up share capital by 579,905,200 shares of 10 sen each by way of an issue of 2 bonus shares forevery 1 share. As at 31 December 2007, the paid up share capital of the Company was RM87,164,660 comprising 871,646,600 shares of 10sen each.
Subsequent to the year end, the listing of the Company’s shares was transferred from the MESDAQ Market to the Main Board of the BursaMalaysia Securities Berhad on 31 January 2008. This marks a significant milestone for the Group on its journey to be a significant player inthe gaming and leisure industry in the region.
Relevant information on other key developments is highlighted under “Review of Operations” and “Calendar of Events 2007” in this AnnualReport.

INDUSTRY TRENDS AND DEVELOPMENT PROSPECTS
The Asian gaming and leisure industry is expected to continue to attract significant investments particularly in Macau, Singapore andPhilippines for ongoing and planned projects in the next few years. It is also very likely that there will be further liberalization of the gamingindustry in other countries in the region in the near future.
In view of the foregoing, the Board is confident that the Group will continue to record positive results in the financial year ending 31 December2008.

Introductory Circular: Transfer of listing to Main Board Information Circular for the CP/MTN Notes program
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APPRECIATION
Our success to-date has been made possible onlythrough the sustained efforts and dedication of all theexecutives and staff of the Group and to them I extendthe Board’s gratitude and appreciation.
On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank our shareholders,customers, business partners, bankers and theauthorities for their continued strong support, trust andconfidence in us. I would also like to thank personallymy fellow Board members for their invaluable adviceand support.
Finally, I wish to place on record our appreciation to Mr.Chng Hee Kok, our Independent Non-Executive Director,who resigned on 30 July 2007, for his contribution to theCompany during his tenure of service.

MR. OOI TENG CHEWIndependent Non-Executive Chairman
22 April 2008Penang

Technological advances in gaming hardware and software continues andthe Group will ensure that adequate resources are made available tosupport research and development efforts.

Although the Group now has strong presence in several countries in theregion, it will need to remain very focused and disciplined to ensure thatit stays one step ahead of the competition. At the same time, the Group’ssuccess as a trusted partner and leader in technical support andmanagement services has attracted requests for it to participate in manyventures including related hospitality projects. The Board will rigorouslyscrutinize and vet all new investment potentials in gaming and leisureindustries and if viable, develop these ventures for future growth. Manyof the Group’s investments in the past year are now coming on-streamand are expected to contribute to the Group’s growth.

Opening of Mekong Hotel & Club in Cambodia

Our manufacturing facility located in Prai, Penang

Interior view of our clubs



KABUKI

Experience Kabuki, Japan's heritage artsnow transformed into a rocking slots game.Exciting story lines enhanced by vibrantcolors and vigorous dancing will keep youmesmerized throughout where 3 or more"Tsuzumi Drums" trigger bonus spin formore excitement....



FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,
Dreamgate Corporation Bhd. ("DCB") continues to makeprogress and benefits from strategies implemented in previousyears. We recorded another year of positive growth withrevenue and net profit improving by 28% and 22% respectively.The Group remains committed to ensuring solid returns toshareholders by meeting its financial and corporate targets.
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FY 2006 FY 2007 % ofRM'000 RM'000 change
RevenueSSM 121,299 152,860 26%TSM 90,080 119,214 32%
Profit before taxSSM 9,348 15,769 69%TSM 37,142 41,784 12%
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The growth has been made possible by:
• Provision of strong customer support through dedicated offices at key locations across the region• Availability of good mixture of machines and games• Aggressive expansion of concession programs 
The SSM division enjoyed approximately 33% growth in the number of gamingmachines sold while the TSM division became one of the major and mostsuccessful concession program operators with approximately 6,000 units ofmachines deployed across Asia as at 31 December 2007.

Machines and games from RGBGames

Our dedicated staff

TSM concession programs
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SALES & MARKETING (“SSM”)
Continuous growth in the gaming industry regionally has increased demand andcreated opportunities for us to market products which have been generating goodreturns for the customers resulting in new and recurring orders. Our strategy ofhaving dedicated offices in selected locations has enabled us to respond tocustomer demands in a timely manner thereby maximising financial returns forcustomers.

During the year, the Group continued to distributeproducts of various leading manufacturers includingCRON Corporation (our associate company). Sales ofRGBGames machines, however, were not encouragingdue to late roll out of new games and concept to themarket and robust competition.

Our staff at work

Selection of games from RGBGames featuring the Hot Rock Link Progressive
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In anticipation of the industry trend to utilize synthetic rather thanwool for table layouts, SSM introduced a synthetic layoutmanufactured by Sibel Products Inc. of USA during the year. This hasenabled the Group to retain its clients who have reduced their ordersfor wool layouts manufactured at our Prai, Penang factory.

SSM commenced marketing of products from our joint venturecompany, RGB Xtale Sdn. Bhd., towards the end of 2007 whileproducts from the other joint venture company, RGB Abbiati Pte. Ltd.,are expected to be marketed in 2008.
The Group was appointed distributor for USA based Wells GardnerElectronic Corp and its subsidiary, American Gaming & Electronics tomarket color video monitors and other related products in 2007.
The Group continues to create awareness for all its products through exhibition at two major regional expositions in Macau and thePhilippines.

Staff working on table game layout in Prai factory

Sample of Sibel table game layout

Our director at G2E Asia, Macau

Abbiati gaming tables, fine examples of exquisite craftsmanship and precision engineering
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RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (“R&D) 
The Group continued to place emphasis on R&D to stay abreast inthis highly competitive and technology driven industry for both slotmachines and table games.
The Malaysian R&D Center at its new premises in Penang becamefully operational during the year. The Center is equipped with newhardware and software and has increased manpower to cope withthe many development projects on hand.
In 2007, the R&D team developed the 9 reels and 15 reels gamesconcept, and the Hot Rock Link Progressive and continued to improveon the in-house SmartLink system, a solution to facilitate a moreefficient gaming floor management. The development of a web-based support application for all RGBGames which will enablereal time access by our customers as well as our personnel, iscurrently in progress.

TECHNICAL SUPPORT & MANAGEMENT (“TSM’)
In 2007, TSM reported placement of an additional 2,200 units ofmachines throughout all locations of operations; an upsurge of 65%from 3,400 machines last year and participated in 21 newconcession programs which opened for business during the year,bringing the total concession programs to 64. The Group has takenan equity interest in two new concessions, in Cambodia andcommenced operations in Lao PDR with one new concession.

The R&D team at work Ulti 32 game from RGBGames

Our TSM concessions in Cambodia
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TECHNOLOGY - Manufacturing Activities
The Group has two factories with total area of about 14,000 sq. ft. inoperation in 2007. An additional factory with an area of 20,000 sq.ft., which was acquired in 2006, was renovated during the year andshall commence operations in May 2008.
These manufacturing facilities cater to production of layouts,assembly of RGBGames machines and repairs and refurbishment ofused machines.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)
The Board believes it should balance its pursuit of businessobjectives with strong support for the underprivileged communities incountries where we operate.
Details of the Group’s CSR initiatives are shown under the heading ofCorporate Social Responsibility 2007 in this Annual Report.

HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT
Human capital development remains a priority for the Group. In 2007,we have promoted a number of executives to senior managementpositions and directorship in subsidiary and associate companies.These executives will play a significant part in our growth andsuccession plans.
Due to our rapid growth in this industry, we have a headcount of 415staff at the end of 2007 as against 210 in 2006. The demand forqualified personnel to fill positions were met by the recruitment ofexpatriates from various countries. It is expected that the trend ofhiring expatriates will continue in the future.

ANIMATION, GRAPHIC AND SIGNAGE 
This division continues to meet its objectives of providing high qualityand attractive signages for both casino operators and slot machinemanufacturers.

PROSPECTS
The Asian gaming and leisure industry continues to grow at a rapidpace with the expansion of opportunities in many countries. Thesuccess of gaming and leisure activities in Macau has encouragedthe Philippines to accelerate its development of the Bagong NayongPilipino-Manila Bay Integrated City, where approval has been givenfor 4 integrated resorts and casinos, and Thailand and Indonesia toconsider liberalization of such industry in their respective countries.
In order to capture a bigger slice of the market, the Group hasinitiated plans to manufacture and market its products under theRGBGames brand and through brands of joint venture partners.
In line with our expansion and to meet the demands of mega casinooperators, the Group will set up a full integrated and logisticsservices center, initially, in Singapore.
The Group will continue to consider forming strategic alliances withmanufacturers seeking to set up manufacturing facilities in theregion. It will also participate in equity interest in companies whichhave concession programs with the Group’s TSM division.
Subsequent to the year end, the Group increased its equity interest inChateau de Bavet Club Co., Ltd. from 40% to 60%. The constructionof the club and casino is in progress and it is expected to open by thisyear end. The Group is currently considering investment proposals forsimilar projects in various countries.
We are committed to improving our leading position in the industryand expect to deliver another set of positive results for the comingyear.

APPRECIATION
My sincere appreciation to the team at DCB Group for their support,commitment and hard work in delivering the results for 2007.
I am confident that our Group’s business plans will be achieved withthe support from a dedicated team.

DATUK CHUAH KIM SEAH, JPGroup Managing Director
22 April 2008Penang
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26 Jana. We incorporated RGB (Cambodia) Ltd. to lead TSM activities in Cambodia.
16-17 Febb. All Nippon Amusement Machine Operators’ (“AOU”) Show 2007
Our associate company, Cron Corporation, exhibited its latest and soon-to-be released games at this annual arcade exposition held in Chiba City, Japan.

21-23 Marc. Asia GEM - Gaming and Entertainment & Leisure Expo -Conference 2007
We rolled out latest games, products and technology from our strategic partnerships and our own RGBGames at this premier gaming exposition held at the World Trade Center,Manila, the Philippines.
15 Aprd. The first RGB Challenge Trophy 2007 kicked off at Penang Turf Club, Penang by the enthusiastic participation of 200 serious golfers. Donations to several charities were given out as part of our role as a caring corporate citizen.
20 Apre. A representative office was set up in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam to meet our business needs in Vietnam.

c

c

c
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8-11 Mayf. We were one of the select few invited to attend the Merrill Lynch : Pan Asia Rising Stars Conference held in Singapore.
14 Mayg. We formed RGB Abbiati Pte. Ltd. with a renowned casinoproducts specialist from Italy to meet the growing demands for quality products in the casino business.
14 Mayh. A RM200 million Commercial Papers / Medium Term Notes was approved to finance our business expansion to the next level.
22 Mayi. The Group acquired a 20% stake in Rainbow World Club Ltd. which owned gaming license in Cambodia.

9 Junj. The Group acquired a building in Cambodia as its operational headquarter to cater to tremendous growth spurts of its business activities.
13-14 Junk. G2E Asia (Global Gaming Asia Expo)We showcased our latest range of gaming machines and products at this major exposition on casino industry held at the Macau Tower Convention & Entertainment Centre, Macau.

f

k

k

k
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15 Junl. The Group incorporated a 70% owned subsidiary, Mekong Recreation Club Ltd. which owns and operates a high end hotel and club in Cambodia.
26 Junm. Fourth Annual General MeetingExtraordinary General MeetingThe shareholders approved all the resolutions proposed at the meetings convened at The Gurney Resort Hotel & Residences.

29 Junn. The Group entered into a joint venture to form Chateau de Bavet Club Co., Ltd. ("Chateau") and formalised its stake of 40% at the end of the year.
Subsequent to year end, the Group increased its stake in Chateau to 60%.

23 Julo. The Group acquired a 25% stake in GoldenMac Ltd. which owned gaming license in Cambodia.
24 Augp. The Group incorporated a jointly controlled company, Golden Beach Club Ltd. which owned gaming license in Cambodia.
4 Sepq. The Group entered into a joint venture agreement with Sibel Products Inc. for the establishment of a joint venture company called RGB Sibel International Sdn. Bhd.. The joint venture allowed the Group to produce synthetic table game layouts for the Asian casino markets.

13-14 Sepr. Japan Amusement Machinery Manufacturers Association ("JAMMA") Show 2007
Our associate company, CRON Corporation participated at this annual JAMMA Show. We showcased the entire range of RGBGames machines and games such as Kabuki, Carmen the Flamenco, Ulti32 which featured the Hot Rock Link Progressive.
28 Seps. Listing of DCB’s 579,905,200 new ordinary shares, credited as fully paid up on the basis of two bonus shares for every one existing ordinary shares.

m

q
Sample of Sibel gaming table layout
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11 Octt. The Group and its partner from UK subscribed for a 50% stake each in a company incorporated under the name of RGB Xtale Sdn. Bhd.. The participation would allow the Group to introduce the server based gaming concept and products in Asia.
24 Octu. The Group acquired a 20% equity interest in Cash Box Entertainment Co., Ltd. which owned gaming license in Cambodia.

13 Novv. The Group acquired a 20% equity interest in the Olympic Entertainment Co., Ltd. which owned gaming license in Cambodia.
20 Novw. RGB Sdn. Bhd. was appointed the exclusive agent of Wells-Gardner Electronic Corporation, USA to provide technical services and distribute spare parts for the gaming and amusement industry in Asia.
26 Decx. The Group incorporated an associate company, Dreamgate Holding Co., Ltd. as its investment and property holding vehicle in Cambodia.r

r

r
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15 February
Visit by staff and donation-in-kind:
• St. Joseph’s Home, Penang• Rumah Sejahtera Bukit Mertajam, Penang• Relau Rumah Charis Bhd,Penang

07 April
National Rehabilitation Center -Special School in Lao PDR
Visit by staff and business partnerstogether with product donation

05 June
Convent Light Street
Donation for Building Fund

17 October 
Disabled Persons Center, Lao PDR
Visit by Group Managing Director withcontribution for handicapped soldiers

1. 3.2.

4.

3. 2.

1.4.



CARMEN THE FLAMENCO

Let Carmen, our Spanishbeauty, introduce you topulsating hot Spanish musicand impassioned dancing....where 3 or more "Carmen"will award you with 10 ormore free games
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ApproximateAge of Audited Net Date ofRegistered Owner/ Building Built-up Area Book Value LastAddress/Location Description Use Tenure (Years) (Sq. Metres) (RM) Revaluation
RGB Sdn Bhd

1. 65 Sims Avenue Building Office cum Freehold 25 113 624,960 30 December #08-04 Factory 2002Yi Xiu Factory BuildingSingapore
2. No. 2017 Land & Factory Leasehold – 34 1,035.03 1,536,529 31 DecemberSolok Perusahaan 3 Building 99 years 2002Kawasan Perusahaan Perai expiring on 1213600 Perai, Penang December 2074Malaysia
3. No. 2018 Land & Factory Leasehold – 34 1,109.71 1,377,791Solok Perusahaan 3 Building 99 years -Kawasan Perusahaan Perai Expiring on 1213600 Perai, Penang December 2074Malaysia

Data Touch Sdn Bhd
4. No. 8 Green Hall Land & Office In Perpetuity 29 2,387.16 3,492,276 31 December10200 Penang Building 2002Malaysia

Total 7,031,556
The Group does not have a formal revaluation policy for its landed properties.

as at 31 December 2007



ApproximateAge of Audited Net Date ofRegistered Owner/ Building Built-up Area Book Value LastAddress/Location Description Use Tenure (Years) (Sq. Metres) (RM) Revaluation
Dreamgate Holding Co., Ltd.

1. No. 87, Street 274 Building Office Freehold 7 480 5,300,000 29 May Samdach Preah Sihanouk & Club 2007BoulevardSangkat Chaktomok KhanDaun PenhPhnom PenhKingdom of Cambodia
2. No. 13 & 14 Shoplot Office Freehold 1 64 384,250 -Block C, E0, E1Chantrea, BavetSway RiengKingdom of Cambodia

Total 5,684,250

LIST OF ASSOCIATE’S PROPERTIES 36 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
as at 31 December 2007
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Utilisation Of Proceeds
The status of utilization of proceeds raised from the listing of DCB on the MESDAQ Market of Bursa Malaysia as at 31 March 2008 is as follows:

Actual ExpectedProposed Utilisation as at Utilisation byUtilisation 31 Mar 2008 12 Jan 2009Purpose RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
i. Purchase of plant and machinery 4,000 2,465 1,535ii. Research & development 5,000 3,770 1,230iii. Overseas expansion 15,000 15,000 -iv. Regional trade mark registration 1,000 82 918v. Advertising, promotion and branding 3,000 3,000 -vi. Working capital 7,461 7,461 -vii. Estimated listing expenses 1,753 1,753 -

37,214 33,531 3,683
Share Buybacks
During the financial year, there were no share buybacks by the Company.
Options, Warrants Or Convertible Securities
The Company did not issue any options, warrants or convertible securities during the financial year ended 31 December 2007 other than thegranting of options under the Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) as disclosed in audited financial statements.
American Depository Receipt (ADR) Or Global Depository Receipt (GDR) Programme
During the financial year, the Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme.
Imposition Of Sanctions/Penalties
The Company is not aware of any sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, directors or management by therelevant regulatory bodies that have not been made public.
Non-audit Fees
During the year, non-audit fees amounting to RM409,900 were paid by the Company and its subsidaries to the Company’s external auditorsand its affiliates as professional fees.
Profit Estimate, Forecast Or Projection
There was no variance between the results for the financial year and the unaudited results previously announced. The Company did not makeany release on the profit estimate, forecast or projections for the financial year.
Profit Guarantees
During the year, there were no profit guarantees given by the Company.
Material Contracts
During the year, there were no material contracts of the Group involving the interests of major shareholders and/or directors.
Contract Relating To Loans
During the year, there were no contracts relating to loans entered into by the Group involving the interests of major shareholders and/ordirectors.
Revaluation of Landed Properties
The Company does not have a revaluation policy on landed properties.
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The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of DCB Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance within the Group.The Group operates within a governance framework designed based on the recommendation of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance.
The Board further acknowledged that good corporate governance is a fundamental part of its responsibility in managing the business andoperations of the Group and discharging its accountability to the shareholders.

Principles Statement
The following Statement sets out how the Group has applied the Principles contained in Part 1 of the Code. The extend of the Group'scompliance with the Best Practices set out in Part 2 of the Code is as stated in the Compliance Statement.

DIRECTORS
The role of the Board
The Board collectively lead and is responsible for the success of the Group by providing entrepreneurial leadership and direction as well assupervision of the management. It is also the ultimate decision making body.
In addition to statutory and legal responsibilities, the Board assumed, among others, the following roles:
• Review and sets the Group’s strategic planning and direction and ensure that resources are available to meet its objectives• Supervise the operations of the Group to evaluate whether established targets are achieved• Identify principal risks and ensure the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks• Developing and implementing an investor relations program or shareholder communications policy for DCB• Establish the Group’s core values, vision and mission and ensure that shareholders’ interests are met• Review the adequacy and the integrity of the Group’s internal control systems including systems for compliance with applicable laws,regulations, rules, directives and guidelines

The Board of Directors
The Board currently comprised five (5) executive directors and two (2) independent non-executive directors. The Composition complied withthe Code and the Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements for Main Board in respect of board composition.
As an effective and dynamic Board is essential towards enhancing long term shareholder value and the interests of other shareholders, theGroup maintains its current Board mix which has the necessary skills, expertise and experience in areas relevant to steering the growth of theGroup’s businesses.
The executive directors are tasked to implement Board decisions and policies whilst overseeing operations and coordinating businessdecisions. On the other hand, the non-executive directors are independent of management and provide effective and impartial judgment andinformed opinions to the deliberations and decision making of the Board thus fulfilling an essential and pivotal role in corporate accountability.
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Independent Non-Executive Chairman and the Managing Director to ensure balance ofpower and authority and greater capacity for independent decision-making.
Brief profile of each Board member is presented in this Annual Report under Profile of Directors.
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Board Meetings
The Board meets at least four (4) times a year, with additional meetings convened as necessary. Six (6) meetings were convened during thefinancial year ended 31 December 2007. Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings are as follows:
Directors Attendance
Ooi Teng Chew 6/6Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP 6/6Mazlan Bin Ismail 6/6Chuah Kim Chiew 6/6Steven Lim Tow Boon 6/6Wong Chee Fai 5/6Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T. 6/6Chng Hee Kok (resigned on 30 July 2007) 3/3
In the intervals between Board meetings, for exceptional matters requiring urgent Board decisions, Board approvals are sought via circularresolutions, which are attached with sufficient and relevant information required for an informed decision to be made. Where a potential conflictarises in any transactions involving Director’s interest, such Director is required to declare his interest and abstain from further discussion andthe decision-making process.

Supply of information
The Directors have full and timely access to information to enable them to discharge their duties.
Agenda and discussion papers are circulated prior to the Board Meetings to allow the Directors to study, evaluate the matters to be discussedand subsequently make effective decisions. Procedures have been established concerning the content, presentation and timely delivery ofpapers for each Board and Board Committee meeting as well as for matters arising from such meetings. Actions on all matters arising fromany meeting are reported at the following meeting.
The Directors are regularly updated by the Company Secretaries on new statutory, corporate and regulatory developments relating to Directors’duties and responsibilities or the discharge of their duties as Directors of the Company.
The Directors have unrestricted access to the advice and services of Company Secretaries and senior management staff in the Group and mayobtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense in the furtherance of their duties.

Appointment to the Board
The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation for any appointments to the Board.

Re-election of Directors
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all newly appointed Directors shall retire and be re-elected by the shareholders atthe Company’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
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An election of Directors takes place subsequent to their appointment each year where one-third (1/3) of the Directors or if their number is notthree (3) or a multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to one-third (1/3), shall retire by rotation from office and shall be eligible for re-election at each AGM and that each Director shall retire from office at least once in every three (3) years and shall be eligible for re-election.

Directors’ Training
All Directors have attended at least one (1) relevant training programme during the financial year ended 31 December 2007. The Directors willcontinue to undergo relevant training programmes to further enhance their skills and knowledge to assist them in discharging their duties andkeep abreast with developments in the market place.

Board Committee
As part of its efforts to ensure the effective  discharge of its duties, the Board has delegated certain functions to certain Committees, namelythe Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee, Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) Committee and Audit Committee with eachoperating within its clearly defined terms of reference. The Chairman of the various Committees will report to the Board on the outcome of theCommittee meetings.

The Board has established the following Committees to assist the Board in the execution of its duties:
Audit Committee
The composition, terms of reference and a summary of the activities of the Audit Committee are set out separately under the Audit CommitteeReport in this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee
Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T., ChairmanOoi Teng Chew
The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to identify and recommend to the Board the technically competent persons of integrityand a strong sense of professionalism to be appointed to the Board.
The Nomination Committee will assess the suitability of an individual to be appointed to the Board by taking into account the individual’s othercommitments, resources and time available for input to the Board before recommendation is made for the Board’s approval.
The actual decision as to who shall be nominated remains the responsibility of the Board after taking into consideration the recommendationsof the Nomination Committee. The Committee shall review annually the required mix of skill and experience and other qualities andcompetencies of its Directors and shall review the composition, structure and size of the Board. The Committee also assesses the contributionof each individual Director, the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the Committees of the Board.
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During the financial year, two (2) meetings were held. Details of the attendance of the members at the Nomination Committee meetings are asfollows:
Members Attendance
Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N, P.K.T. 2/2Ooi Teng Chew 2/2Chng Hee Kok (resigned on 30 July 2007) 1/1

During the financial year under review, the Committee met and deliberated on the following matters:
a) candidates for appointment to the Board ;b) size of the Board and the impact of the number upon its effectiveness;c) balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) with an aim of achieving a balance of views on the Board;d) required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including core competencies of the members of the Board;e) contribution of each individual Director, the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the committees of the Board.

Remuneration Committee
Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N, P.K.T., ChairmanOoi Teng ChewDatuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP
The Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board from time to time, the remuneration framework and remuneration package ofthe Executive Directors of the Group in all forms to commensurate with the respective contributions of the Executive Directors.
The Committee seeks to establish a remuneration policy which is sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of caliber needed to runthe Group successfully. Directors abstained from deliberations and voting on the decision in respect of their own remuneration package.
The Board as a whole decides the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, including Non-Executive Chairman. The individuals concerned shallabstain from discussion of their own remuneration package and the shareholders at the AGM must approve the Directors’ fees.
During the financial year, three (3) meetings were held. Details of the attendance of the members at the Remuneration Committee Meetingsare as follows:
Members Attendance
Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T. 3/3Ooi Teng Chew 3/3Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP 2/3Chng Hee Kok (resigned on 30 July 2007) 1/1
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ESOS Committee
Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T., ChairmanOoi Teng ChewDatuk Chuah Kim Seah, JPMazlan Bin Ismail
The ESOS Committee was established to administer the ESOS of the Company in accordance with the By-laws of the scheme. During thefinancial year ended 31 December 2007, two (2) meetings were held. Details of attendance of the members at the ESOS Committee Meetingsare as follows:
Members Attendance
Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T. 2/2Ooi Teng Chew 2/2Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP 2/2Mazlan bin Ismail 2/2Chng Hee Kok (resigned on 30 July 2007) 2/2

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The Directors are satisfied that the current level of remuneration are in line with the responsibilities expected in the Group.
The aggregate Directors’ Remuneration paid or payable to all Directors of the Company by the Group and categorised into appropriatecomponents for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Salaries/Other Share OptionsEmoluments Fees Granted Under TotalDirectors (RM) (RM) ESOS (RM)
Executive 1,496,608 - - 1,496,608Non-Executives 30,000 176,000 - 206,000
The number of Directors of the Company whose remuneration fall within the following bands are:

No. of DirectorsRemuneration bands Executive Non-Executive
Below RM50,000 - 1RM50,001-RM100,000 - 2RM100,001-RM150,000 1 -RM200,001-RM250,000 2 -RM350,001-RM400,000 1 -RM550,001-RM600,000 1 -
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SHAREHOLDERS
Communication with Shareholders and Investors
The Group recognises the importance of being accountable to its shareholders and investors and as such has maintained active communicationand feedback policy with institutional investors, shareholders and public generally to explain the Group’s strategy, performance and majordevelopments. All shareholders have an opportunity to participate in discussion with the Board on matters relating to the Company’s operationand performance at the Company’s AGM.
Alternatively, they may obtain the Group’s latest announcements via the Bursa Malaysia’s website at www.bursamalaysia.com. In addition,the Company has also established a website at www.dreamgatecorp.com to which shareholders can access for up to date information.
Dato’ Mahinder is the Senior Independent Non-Executice Director to whom concerns regarding the Group may be conveyed.
The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. The shareholders are encouraged to participate inthe open question and answer sessions in the AGM pertaining to the resolutions being proposed at the meeting and the financial performanceand business operation in general.
The Group normally conducts a press conference immediately after the meeting to address media queries on the Group’s financial performanceand operations to-date.
Whilst the Company will ensure that comprehensive information are made available to shareholders, all such release of information will bemade within the ambit of the legal and regulatory requirements that govern the release of sensitive and material information. No singleshareholder or shareholder group will be given information that are regarded as undisclosed.
Dialogues and briefings on the Group’s strategies, performance and major development are held with various research and investment analysts.These communications enable investors to have updated information and better appreciation and clarity of the Group’s performance.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting
The Directors have taken reasonable steps to provide a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s financial performance andprospects. In this respect, the Audit Committee assists the Board with the overseeing of the Group’s financial reporting process and the qualityof the financial reporting.
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Relation to the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company which give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company and will ensure that they are presented in accordance with theprovisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and the applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia.
In the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007, the Directors are satisfied that the Group had usedappropriate accounting policies that are consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates.
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Internal Control
The Board recognises the importance of internal control systems whereby shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets can besafeguarded. The Statement on Internal Control as set out in this Annual Report provides an overview of the state of internal control of theGroup.
Relationship with the Auditors
The Board has established a transparent relationship with the external auditors through the Audit Committee, which has been accorded withthe power to communicate directly with the external auditors towards ensuring compliance with the accounting standards and other relatedregulatory requirements.
The role of the Audit Committee in relation to the external auditors is stated under the Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report.
Compliance Statement
The Company has complied, throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2007, with the all the Best Practices of corporate governenceset out in Part 2 to the Code except for the following:
The revised Code requires the Audit Committee to comprise fully non-executive directors, majority of whom are independent. Presently, theAudit Committee is made up of two non-executive directors and one executive director. The Board takes cognizance of the membershiprequirement of the Audit Committee under the revised Code and the transitional period allowed under the amendments of the ListingRequirements and will take measures to comply in due course.

This statement is issued in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 22 April 2008.



MEMBERS
Ooi Teng Chew, ChairmanIndependent Non-Executive Director
Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T.Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Mazlan Bin IsmailExecutive Director
Secretaries of the Audit Committee
Ms. Lam Voon Kean (MIA 4793)Ms. Lee Yap Kuan (MAICSA 7003482)

The Committee is governed by the following terms of reference:
MEMBERSHIP
The Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the Directors excluding Alternate Directors, and shall consist of not less thanthree (3) members who are financial literate, a majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Committeeshall be an Independent Non-Executive Director appointed by the Board. In the event of any vacancy in the Committee, the Board must withinthree (3) months, appoint such number of new members as may be required to make up the minimum of three (3) members. The term of officeand performance of the Committee and each of its member shall be reviewed by the Board at least once every three (3) years to determinewhether the Committee and its members have carried out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.
The Board shall at all times ensure that at least one (1) member of the Committee shall be:(i) a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”); or(ii) if he or she is not a member of MIA, he or she must have at least three (3) years of working experience and:a. he or she must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the 1st Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; orb. he or she must be a member of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of the Accountants Act 1967 or(iii) fulfills such other requirements as prescribed or approved by the Bursa Securities.

AUTHORITY
The Committee is granted the authority to investigate any activity of the Group and the Company within its terms of reference, to obtain theresources which it needs, and to have full and unrestricted access to information and all employees are directed to co-operate with any requestmade by the Committee. The Coommitee is empowered to obtain independent professional or other advice and retain persons having specialcompetence as necessary to assist the Committee in fulfilling its responsibility. The Committee shall have direct communication channels withthe external and internal auditors and with senior management of the Group and shall be able to convene meetings with the external auditors,the internal auditors or both, excluding the attendence of other directors and employees of the Company, whenever deemed necessary. If theCommittee is of the view that a matter reported to the Board has not been satisfactorily resolved resulting in a breach of the Bursa MalaysiaSecurities Berhad’s (“Bursa Malaysia”) Listing Requirements the Committee shall promptly report such matter to Bursa Malaysia.
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RESPONSIBILITY
The Committee is to serve as a focal point for communication between non-Committee Directors, the external auditors, the internal auditorsand the management on matters in connection with financial accounting, reporting and controls. The Committee is to assist the Board infulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities as to accounting policies and reporting practices of the Group and the Company and the sufficiency ofauditing relating thereto. It is the Board’s principal agent in assuring the independence of the Company’s external auditors, the integrity of themanagement and the adequacy of disclosures to shareholders.

DUTIES
The duties of the Committee are:
a) to review with the external and internal auditors whether the employees of the Group and the Company have given them the appropriate assistance in discharging their duties;
b) to review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
c) to review the internal audit programme, processes, the results of the internal audit programme, processes or investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken by management on the recommendations of the internal auditors;
d) to appraise the performance of the head of internal audit and review the appraisals of senior staff members of the internal audit;
e) to approve any appointment or termination of the head of internal audit and senior staff members of the internal audit function and to review any resignations of internal audit staff members and provide resigning staff members an opportunity to submit reasons for resigning, where necessary;
f) to review the quarterly results and year end financial statements of the Group and the Company, prior to the approval by the Board, whilst ensuring that they are prepared in a timely and accurate manner, focusing particularly on :

i. changes in or implementation of major accounting policies;ii. significant adjustments and unusual events;iii. the going concern assumption; andiv. compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements;
g) to review any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Group or the Company including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity;
h) to review with the external auditors, the audit report, the nature and scope of their audit plan and their evaluation of the system of internal controls;
i) to recommend to the Board on the appointment and the annual re-appointment of external auditors, their audit fees and any questions on resignation and dismissal;
j) to review the co-ordination of the audit approach and ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm of external auditors is involved and the co-ordination between the external and internal auditors; 
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k) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audits, and any matter the auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);
l) to review the external auditor’s management letter and management’s response;
m) to consider the major findings of internal investigations and management’s response; 
n) to review and verify the allocation of share options to employees under the ESOS Scheme; and 
o) to perform any other functions as authorised by the Board.

MEETINGS
The Committee is to meet at least four (4) times a year and as many times as the Committee deems necessary with due notice of issues to bediscussed sent to all members. A quorum of two (2) members, of which the majority of members present must be Independent Non-ExecutiveDirectors, is required for all meetings.
The meetings and proceedings of the Committee are governed by the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company regulating themeetings and proceedings of the Board so far as the same are applicable.
The Group Finance Director and the representative of internal auditors shall be in attendance at meetings of the Committee. The Committeemay invite the external auditors, the Finance Manager, any other directors or members of the management and employees of the Group to bein attendance during meetings to assist in its deliberations. Upon request by the external auditors, the Chairman of the Committee shall convenea meeting of the Committee to consider any matters the external auditors believe should be brought to the attention of the directors orshareholders of the Company. At least once a year, the Committee shall meet with the external auditors without the presence of any executivedirector and also the management staff.
Minutes of each meeting are to be prepared to record its conclusions in discharging its duties and responsibilities and sent to the Committeemembers, and the Company’s Directors who are not members of the Committee.

Attendance of Meetings
For the financial year ended 31 December 2007, a total of six (6) Audit Committee Meetings were held, details of which are as follows:
Members Attendance
Ooi Teng Chew 6/6Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku 6/6Mazlan Bin Ismail 6/6Chng Hee Kok (resigned on 30 July 2007) 3/3



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 48 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES
The main activities undertaken by the Committee for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 were as follows:
a) Reviewed the research reports and quarterly unaudited financial statements of the Group and recommended them to the Board of Directorsfor approval and for announcement to Bursa Malaysia;
b) Reviewed the internal audit plan, its scope of work, functions, competency and resources and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
c) Reviewed the internal audit reports, which highlighted the audit issues, recommendations and management’s response. Discussed withmanagement the corrective actions taken to improve the system of internal control based on improvement opportunities identified in the internal audit reports;
d) Reviewed the annual report and the audited financial statement of the Company prior to the submission to the Board for their consideration and approval. The review is, inter-alia, to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965, Listing Requirements of BursaMalaysia, applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and other legal and regulatory requirements;
e) Discussed with external auditors on their audit plan and scope of work for the year as well as the audit procedures to be utilised;
f) Reviewed the recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature entered into by the Group; and
g) Considered the re-appointment of external auditors.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Company has appointed an independent professional accounting firm to provide outsourced internal audit function for the Group in orderto assist the Committee in discharging its duties and responsibilities. During the financial year, internal audit activities have been carried outin accordance to the internal audit plan which has been approved by the Audit Committee.

STATEMENT BY AUDIT COMMITTEE IN RELATION TO ESOS ALLOCATION
Pursuant to Para 8.21A of the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia, the Audit Committee verified and confirmed that the allocation of optionsto eligible employees during the financial year ended 31 December 2007 has been made in accordance with the allocation criteria of thescheme.
A breakdown of the options offered to and exercised by the Directors, if any, pursuant to the ESOS in respect of the financial year is disclosedin the audited financial statements.
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The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance stipulates that the Board of Directors of listed companies should maintain a sound system ofinternal control to safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board of Directors of Dreamgate Corporation Bhd is pleasedto provide the following statement on the state of internal control of the Group, which has been prepared in accordance with the Statement onInternal Control: Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies (“Internal Control Guidance”) issued by the Task Force of Internal Controland adopted by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board recognises the importance of a sound system of internal control and a structured risk management framework to good corporategovernance. The Board affirms its overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of internal control and for reviewing the adequacy and integrityof those systems. Because of the limitations that are inherent in any system of internal control, those systems are designed to manage ratherthan eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against materialmisstatement or loss.
The Board has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced, or potentially exposed to,by the Group in pursuing its business objectives. This process has been in place throughout the financial year and up to the date of approvalof the annual report. The adequacy and effectiveness of this process have been continually reviewed by the Board and are in accordance withthe Internal Control Guidance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board and management practice proactive significant risks identification on a quarterly basis or earlier as appropriate, particularly anymajor proposed transactions, changes in nature of activities and/or operating environment, or venturing into new operating environment whichmay entail different risks, and put in place the appropriate risk response strategies and controls until those risks are managed to, andmaintained at, a level acceptable to the Board.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Board acknowledges the importance of internal audit function and has engaged the services of an independent professional accountingand consulting firm to provide much of the assurance it requires regarding the effectiveness as well as the adequacy and integrity of the Group’ssystems of internal control.
The internal audit function adopts a risk-based approach in developing its audit plan which addresses all the core auditable areas of the Groupbased on their risk. Scheduled internal audits are carried out by the internal auditors based on their audit plan presented to and approved bythe Audit Committee. The audit focuses on areas with high risk and weak controls to ensure that an adequate action plan is in place to improvethe controls. For those areas with high risk and strong controls, the audit ascertains that the risks are effectively mitigated by the controls.On a quarterly basis or earlier as appropriate, the internal auditors report to the Audit Committee on areas for improvement and willsubsequently follow up to determine the extent of their recommendations that have been implemented.

KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Apart from risk management and internal audit, the Group has put in place the following key elements of internal control:
• An organisation structure with well-defined scopes of responsibility, clear lines of accountability, and appropriate levels of delegated authority;
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• A process of hierarchical reporting which provides for a documented and auditable trail of accountability;
• A set of documented internal policies and procedures for operational, financial and human resource management which is subject toregular review and improvement;
• Regular and comprehensive information provided to management, covering financial and operational performance and key business indicators, for effective monitoring and decision making;
• A comprehensive business plan and detailed budgeting process where operating units prepare budgets for the coming year which areapproved both at operating unit level and by the Board; and
• Regular visits to operating units by members of the Board and senior management.
Based on the internal auditors’ report for the financial year ended 31 December 2007, there is a reasonable assurance that the Group’s systemsof internal control are generally adequate and appear to be working satisfactorily. A number of minor internal control weaknesses wereidentified during the financial year, all of which have been, or are being, addressed. None of the weaknesses have resulted in any materiallosses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Group’s annual report.
The Board continues to review and implement measures to strengthen the internal control environment of the Group.

This statement is issued by the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 22 April 2008.
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as at 2 April 2008

Share Capital
Authorised : RM150,000,000Issued and fully paid up : RM87,204,470Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 eachVoting Rights : One Vote per Ordinary Share

Distribution of Shareholdings
Size of holdings No. of Holders % of Holders No. of Shares %
1 - 99 7 0.13 196 -100 - 1,000 143 2.54 110,120 0.011,001 - 10,000 2,962 52.61 16,465,275 1.8910,001 -100,000 2,175 38.63 70,042,045 8.03100,001 - 43,602,234(*) 339 6.02 302,840,158 34.7343,602,235 and above(**) 4 0.07 482,586,906 55.34
Total 5,630 100.00 872,044,700 100.00

Remarks :
* Less than 5% of issued shares** 5% and above of issued shares

Substantial Shareholders holding 5% or more in the share capital
< –––––– Direct Interest –––––– > < –––––– Indirect Interest –––––– >No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

Name
Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP 336,648,090 38.60 1,603,800 (a) 0.18Gerak Juara Sdn Bhd 162,031,986 18.58 - -Mazlan Bin Ismail 1,740,000 0.20 162,031,986 (b) 18.58Ahmad Anwar Bin Mohd Nor - - 162,031,986 (b) 18.58
Note:
(a) Deemed interested by virture of holding more than 15% in the shares of RGB (Sabah) Sdn Bhd and Manju Sdn Bhd.(b) Deemed interested by virture of holding more than 15% in the shares of Gerak Juara Sdn Bhd.
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Directors' Interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and related Companies
< –––––– Direct Interest –––––– > < –––––– Indirect Interest –––––– >No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

The Company
Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP 336,648,090 38.60 1,623,800 (b) 0.19Mazlan Bin Ismail 1,740,000 0.20 162,031,986 (c) 18.58Chuah Kim Chiew 26,764,194 3.07 1,603,800 (d) 0.18Lim Tow Boon 5,434,500 0.62 - -Wong Chee Fai 4,500,000 (a) 0.52 - -Ooi Teng Chew 300,000 0.03 - -Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T. 140,000 0.02 - -
RGB (Macau) Limited
Lim Tow Boon 1 4 - -
(a) Inclusive of 4,200,000 ordinary shares held through Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.(b) Deemed interested by virture of holding more than 15% in the shares of RGB (Sabah) Sdn Bhd and Manju Sdn Bhd. and 20,000 ordinaryshares held by his spouse, Datin Tan Soo Kim(c) Deemed interested by virture of holding more than 15% in the shares of Gerak Juara Sdn Bhd.(d) Deemed interested by virture of holding more than 15% in the shares of RGB (Sabah) Sdn Bhd and Manju Sdn Bhd.
By virtue of their interests in the shares of the Company, Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP and En. Mazlan Bin Ismail are also deemed to have aninterest in the shares of the subsidiary companies to the extent the Company has an interest.

Directors' Interests in the Employee Share Option Scheme
Name Balance of OptionsUnexercised (c/f)
Chuah Kim Chiew 3,600,000Lim Tow Boon 1,050,000Wong Chee Fai 3,600,000Ooi Teng Chew 2,400,000Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku D.S.P.N., P.K.T. 1,800,000
The Employee Share Option Scheme was established on 19 October 2005 and will be in force for 5 years from the date of implementation.

as at 2 April 2008
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No. Name No. of Shares %
1 Gerak Juara Sdn Bhd 145,938,816 16.742 Chuah Kim Seah 116,587,830 13.373 Chuah Kim Seah 110,153,430 12.634 Chuah Kim Seah 109,906,830 12.605 HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 33,757,680 3.87BBH and Co. Boston for Smaller Companies Portfolio (GEMOFL)6 Chuah Kim Chiew 26,764,194 3.077 Gerak Juara Sdn Bhd 16,093,170 1.858 Goh Sin Tien 13,869,000 1.599 Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 12,928,700 1.48Exempt an for American International Assurance Company Limited10 HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 12,571,020 1.44Exempt an for JPmorgan Chase Bank, National Association (Jersey)11 Cartaban Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 10,695,000 1.23SSBT Fund IE1B for Van ECK Emerging Markets Fund12 AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 10,690,900 1.23AmTrustee Berhad for Pacific Pearl Fund (UT-PM-PPF)13 Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 7,884,000 0.90GSCO for Truffle Hound Global Value LLC14 HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 6,332,900 0.73Exempt an for Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated15 Chuah Seong Whan 5,851,125 0.6716 Lim Tow Boon 5,434,500 0.6217 Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 4,200,000 0.48Pledged Securities Account for Wong Chee Fai (100579)18 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 3,709,000 0.43HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for HwangDBS Select Opportunity Fund (3969)19 Teng Whye Lok 3,323,400 0.3820 Yii Yeang Ping 3,006,000 0.3421 First Genesis Sdn Bhd 3,000,000 0.3422 HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 3,000,000 0.34TNTC for DBS Malaysia Equity Fund23 Mercsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 2,950,000 0.34Pledged Securities Account for Piramid Tulin Sdn Bhd24 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 2,906,700 0.33HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for Pacific Focus 18 Fund (5071-401)25 BHLB Trustee Berhad 2,766,400 0.32Pacific Income Fund26 BHLB Trustee Berhad 2,719,800 0.31Pacific Recovery Fund27 Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 2,386,200 0.27CBNY for DFA Emerging Markets Small Cap Series28 Kam Chooi Suan 2,345,100 0.2729 HDM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 2,336,000 0.27Pledged Securities Account for Wong Yoke Fong @ Wong Nyok Fing (M09)30 Ung Chi Fong 1,961,400 0.22

686,069,095 78.66
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for thefinancial year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year except for the involvement in gaming andleisure activities as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
GROUP COMPANYRM RM

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company 38,300,969 26,324,026

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the year other than as disclosed in the financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not substantiallyaffected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature other than as disclosed in the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
The amount of dividend paid by the Company since 31 December 2006 was as follows:

RM
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2006 as reported in the directors' report of that year:
First and final tax exempt dividend of 12.41% on 289,339,700 ordinary shares,approved on 26 June 2007 and paid on 28 August 2007 3,590,705

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a first and final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2007, of non-taxexempt dividend of 5% less 26% taxation and tax exempt dividend of 1.8% will be proposed for shareholders' approval. The financialstatements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accountedfor in equity as an appropriation of retained profits in the financial year ending 31 December 2008.



DIRECTORS
The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this report are:
Ooi Teng ChewDatuk Chuah Kim Seah, JPMazlan Bin IsmailChuah Kim ChiewLim Tow BoonWong Chee FaiDato' Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T.Chng Hee Kok (resigned on 30 July 2007)

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the Company was a party,whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other bodycorporate, other than those arising from the share options granted to the directors under the Employee Share Options Scheme.
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than benefits included inthe aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Companyas shown in Note 9 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any director or witha firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed inNote 37 to the financial statements and those directors who may be deemed to derive a benefit by virtue of those transactions entered into inthe normal course of business with companies in which certain directors have substantial financial interest.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
According to the register of directors' shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares and optionsover shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year were as follows:

< Number of Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 Each >1 January 31 December2007 Acquired Bonus Issue Sold 2007
The Company
Direct interest:Ooi Teng Chew 50,000 50,000 200,000 - 300,000Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP 110,823,830 1,320,000 224,287,660 - 336,431,490Mazlan Bin Ismail - 1,200,000 1,160,000 (620,000) 1,740,000Chuah Kim Chiew 8,921,398 - 17,842,796 - 26,764,194Lim Tow Boon 2,307,000 600,000 3,623,000 (1,095,500) 5,434,500Wong Chee Fai 1,550,000 50,000 3,000,000 (100,000) 4,500,000Dato' Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N, P.K.T. - 300,000 507,800 (667,800) 140,000
Indirect interest:Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP 534,600 - 1,069,200 - 1,603,800Mazlan Bin Ismail 54,010,662 - 108,021,324 - 162,031,986Chuah Kim Chiew 534,600 - 1,069,200 - 1,603,800
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (CONTD.)
< Number of Ordinary Shares of MOP1,000 Each >1 January 31 December2007 Acquired Sold 2007

Subsidiary- RGB (Macau) Limited
Direct interest:Lim Tow Boon 1 - - 1

< Number of Options Over Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 Each >1 January 31 December2007 Granted Bonus Issue Exercised 2007
The Company
Ooi Teng Chew 850,000 - 1,600,000 (50,000) 2,400,000Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP 1,320,000 - - (1,320,000) -Mazlan Bin Ismail 1,200,000 - - (1,200,000) -Chuah Kim Chiew 1,200,000 - 2,400,000 - 3,600,000Lim Tow Boon 950,000 - 700,000 (600,000) 1,050,000Wong Chee Fai 1,200,000 - 2,400,000 - 3,600,000Dato' Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N, P.K.T. 900,000 - 1,200,000 (300,000) 1,800,000

By virtue of their interests in shares of the Company, Datuk Chuah Kim Seah, JP and Mazlan Bin Ismail are also deemed interested in sharesof all the Company's subsidiaries to the extent the Company has an interest.

ISSUE OF SHARES
During the financial year, the Company increased its:
(a) authorised ordinary share capital from RM50,000,000 to RM150,000,000 through the creation of 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares ofRM0.10 each; and
(b) issued and paid-up ordinary share capital from RM28,254,500 to RM87,164,660 by way of:

(i) the issuance of 7,407,600 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each for cash pursuant to the Company's Employee Share Options Scheme,before bonus issue, at a weighted average exercise price of RM1.10 per ordinary share; and
(ii) the bonus issue of 579,905,200 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each credited as fully paid up on 27 September 2007 on the basis of twobonus shares for every one existing ordinary share held; and
(iii) the issuance of 1,788,800 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each for cash pursuant to the Company's Employee Share Options Scheme,after bonus issue, at a weighted average exercise price of RM0.37 per ordinary share.



EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME
The Company's Employee Share Options Scheme ("ESOS") is governed by the Bye-Laws approved by the shareholders at an ExtraordinaryGeneral Meeting held on 28 June 2005. The ESOS was implemented on 19 October 2005 and is to be in force for a period of 5 years from thedate of implementation.
The salient features and other terms of the ESOS are disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.
The Company has been granted exemption by the Companies Commission of Malaysia from having to disclose the names of option holders,other than directors, who have been granted options to subscribe for less than 120,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each.
Details of options granted to directors are disclosed in the section on Directors' Interests in this report.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
(a) Before the income statements and balance sheets of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for doubtful debtsand satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts in thefinancial statements of the Group and that there were no known bad debts and that no provision for doubtful debts is required in thefinancial statements of the Company; and
(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting records in the ordinary courseof business have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:
(i) it necessary to write off any bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Groupinadequate to any substantial extent nor are they aware of any circumstances that would render it necessary to write off any baddebts or to make any provision for doubtful debts in respect of the financial statements of the Company; and
(ii) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render adherence to theexisting method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.
(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statementsof the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures theliabilities of any other person; or
(ii) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONTD.)
(f) In the opinion of the directors:

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months afterthe end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their obligations when theyfall due; and
(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year andthe date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for thefinancial year in which this report is made, except as disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Details of subsequent events are disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 22 April 2008.

DATUK CHUAH KIM SEAH, JP MAZLAN BIN ISMAIL



We, DATUK CHUAH KIM SEAH, JP and MAZLAN BIN ISMAIL, being two of the directors of DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD., do hereby statethat, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 63 to 130 are drawn up in accordance with theprovisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and applicable Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of thefinancial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2007 and of the results and the cash flows of the Group and of theCompany for the year then ended.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 22 April 2008.

DATUK CHUAH KIM SEAH, JP MAZLAN BIN ISMAIL

I, DATUK CHUAH KIM SEAH, JP, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management of DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD., dosolemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 63 to 130 are in my opinion correct, and I makethis solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by theabovenamed DATUK CHUAH KIM SEAH, JPat Georgetown in the state of the Penangon 22 April 2008 : DATUK CHUAH KIM SEAH, JP

Before me,

Commissioner for Oaths
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PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965
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We have audited the financial statements set out on pages 65 to 132. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company'sdirectors.
It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on the financial statements and to report our opinion to you, as abody, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any otherperson for the content of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable Approved Standards on Auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we plan andperform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includesexamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing theaccounting principles used and significant estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financialstatements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion:
(a) the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and applicableFinancial Reporting Standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of:

(i) the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2007 and of the results and the cash flows of the Groupand of the Company for the year then ended; and
(ii) the matters required by Section 169 of the Companies Act, 1965 to be dealt with in the financial statements; and

(b) the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by its subsidiaries of which wehave acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
We have considered the financial statements and the auditors' reports thereon of the subsidiaries of which we have not acted as auditors, asindicated in Note 15 to the financial statements, being financial statements that have been included in the consolidated financial statements.
We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial statements of the Company arein form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and we have receivedsatisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.
The auditors' reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification material to the consolidated financialstatements and did not include any comment required to be made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

ERNST & YOUNG LIM FOO CHEWAF: 0039 No. 1748/01/10(J)Chartered Accountants Partner
Penang, MalaysiaDate: 22 April 2008

TO THE MEMBERS OF DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD.



GROUP COMPANYNote 2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM
Revenue 3 276,306,540 215,380,288 33,439,860 5,896,840Cost of sales 4 (186,126,405) (149,195,703) - -
Gross profit 90,180,135 66,184,585 33,439,860 5,896,840
Other income 5 1,627,857 409,187 1,787,018 601,708Administrative expenses (39,034,364) (22,229,307) (3,143,255) (2,733,817)Selling and marketing expenses (4,978,450) (4,570,150) - -Other expenses, net (956,599) (2,134,603) (2,598,498) (149,127)
Operating profit 46,838,579 37,659,712 29,485,125 3,615,604
Finance costs 6 (6,944,382) (5,050,377) (1,851,335) (201)Share of profit of jointly controlled entities 106,236 - - -Share of (loss)/profit of associates (709,635) 669,811 - -
Profit before tax 7 39,290,798 33,279,146 27,633,790 3,615,403
Income tax expense 10 (977,184) (1,808,918) (1,309,764) 32,012
Profit for the year 38,313,614 31,470,228 26,324,026 3,647,415

Attributable to:Equity holders of the Company 38,300,969 31,470,228 26,324,026 3,647,415Minority interests 12,645 - - -
38,313,614 31,470,228 26,324,026 3,647,415

Earnings per share attributable Sen Sento equity holders of the Company: (restated,Note 11)
Basic, for profit for the year 11(a) 4.43 3.73

Diluted, for profit for the year 11(b) 4.34 3.67

INCOME STATEMENTS63DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



BALANCE SHEETS 64 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

GROUP COMPANYNote 2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM(restated,Note 2.3(b))
ASSETS
Non-current assetsProperty, plant and equipment 13 203,608,076 135,655,654 53,163 53,132Prepaid land lease payments 14 1,421,877 727,222 - -Investments in subsidiaries 15 - - 44,348,530 43,149,212Investments in jointly controlled entities 16 1,592,374 - 232,651 -Investments in associates 17 3,860,051 1,273,660 - -Other investment 18 4,000 4,000 - -Development costs 19 1,749,380 898,826 - -Long term lease receivables 22 4,803,921 7,091,097 - -Other receivables 23 714,790 2,148,162 - -

217,754,469 147,798,621 44,634,344 43,202,344
Current assetsInventories 20 7,445,756 11,491,381 - -Trade receivables 21 103,257,295 87,591,996 - -Short term lease receivables 22 1,921,094 1,921,094 - -Other receivables 23 20,213,264 10,849,455 51,191 178,107Tax recoverable 490,041 360,882 318,049 99,478Due from subsidiaries 24 - - 120,124,971 17,407,410Due from jointly controlled entities 25 246,464 - 55,646 -Due from associates 26 8,361,034 2,376,330 - -Deposits with licensed banks 27 7,936,989 4,793,449 5,606,935 2,464,181Cash and bank balances 35,000,470 16,782,183 3,415,658 248,835

184,872,407 136,166,770 129,572,450 20,398,011
TOTAL ASSETS 402,626,876 283,965,391 174,206,794 63,600,355

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007



GROUP COMPANYNote 2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM(restated,Note 2.3(b))
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equityholders of the CompanyShare capital 28 87,164,660 28,254,500 87,164,660 28,254,500Share premium 28 651,084 30,594,229 651,084 30,594,229Foreign exchange translation reserve 29 (13,729,662) (6,419,359) - -Share option reserve 29 2,998,027 3,042,913 3,030,955 3,042,913Retained earnings 31 98,875,108 83,226,609 3,721,203 49,647

175,959,217 138,698,892 94,567,902 61,941,289Minority interests 50,724 - - -
Total equity 176,009,941 138,698,892 94,567,902 61,941,289
Non-current liabilitiesBorrowings 32 41,448,441 43,918,422 - -Deferred tax liabilities 34 634,307 714,594 - -

42,082,748 44,633,016 - -
Current liabilitiesBorrowings 32 99,381,498 24,330,556 79,266,562 -Trade payables 35 69,209,324 57,032,679 - -Other payables 36 14,612,481 16,709,415 372,330 475,233Due to jointly controlled entities 25 585,780 - - -Tax payable 745,104 2,560,833 - 1,183,833

184,534,187 100,633,483 79,638,892 1,659,066
Total liabilities 226,616,935 145,266,499 79,638,892 1,659,066
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 402,626,876 283,965,391 174,206,794 63,600,355

BALANCE SHEETS65DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 66 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

< Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company >< Non-distributable > DistributableForeignCurrency ShareShare Share Translation Option Retained TotalGROUP Note Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Earnings EquityRM RM RM RM RM RM
At 1 January 2006 28,000,000 28,017,512 217,500 296,649 55,984,356 112,516,017Foreign currency translation:Group - - (6,437,498) - - (6,437,498)Associates - - (199,361) - - (199,361)
Net expense recogniseddirectly in equity - - (6,636,859) - - (6,636,859)Profit for the year - - - - 31,470,228 31,470,228
Total recognised income andexpense for the year - - (6,636,859) - 31,470,228 24,833,369
Dividend 12 - - - - (4,227,975) (4,227,975)Issue of ordinary sharespursuant to ESOS 254,500 2,576,717 - (107,017) - 2,724,200Share options granted under ESOS - - - 2,853,281 - 2,853,281
At 31 December 2006 28,254,500 30,594,229 (6,419,359) 3,042,913 83,226,609 138,698,892

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007



< Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company >< Non-distributable > DistributableForeignCurrency ShareShare Share Translation Option Retained Minority TotalGROUP Note Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Interests EquityRM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
At 1 January 2007 28,254,500 30,594,229 (6,419,359) 3,042,913 83,226,609 138,698,892 - 138,698,892Foreign currencytranslation:Group - - (7,155,424) - - (7,155,424) - (7,155,424)Jointly controlledentities - - (3,315) - - (3,315) - (3,315)Associates - - (151,564) - - (151,564) - (151,564)
Net expense recogniseddirectly in equity - - (7,310,303) - - (7,310,303) - (7,310,303)Profit for the year - - - - 38,300,969 38,300,969 12,645 38,313,614
Total recognised incomeand expense for the year - - (7,310,303) - 38,300,969 30,990,666 12,645 31,003,311
Dividend 12 - - - - (3,590,705) (3,590,705) - (3,590,705)Issue of ordinary sharespursuant to ESOSbefore bonus issue 740,760 8,334,526 - (937,349) - 8,137,937 - 8,137,937Issue of bonus shares 57,990,520 (38,928,755) - - (19,061,765) - - -Issue of ordinary sharespursuant to ESOSafter bonus issue 178,880 651,084 - (175,907) - 654,057 - 654,057Share options grantedunder ESOS - - - 1,068,370 - 1,068,370 32,928 1,101,298Subscription of ordinaryshares by minorityinterests in a subsidiary - - - - - - 5,151 5,151
At 31 December 2007 87,164,660 651,084 (13,729,662) 2,998,027 98,875,108 175,959,217 50,724 176,009,941

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY67DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 68 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

< Non-distributable > DistributableShareShare Share Option Retained TotalCOMPANY Note Capital Premium Reserve Earnings EquityRM RM RM RM RM
At 1 January 2006 28,000,000 28,017,512 296,649 630,207 56,944,368Profit for the year, representingtotal recognised income andexpense for the year - - - 3,647,415 3,647,415Dividend 12 - - - (4,227,975) (4,227,975)Issue of ordinary sharespursuant to ESOS 254,500 2,576,717 (107,017) - 2,724,200Share options granted under ESOS:Recognised in profit or loss - - 518,367 - 518,367Included in investments in subsidiaries - - 2,334,914 - 2,334,914
At 31 December 2006 28,254,500 30,594,229 3,042,913 49,647 61,941,289
At 1 January 2007 28,254,500 30,594,229 3,042,913 49,647 61,941,289Profit for the year, representingtotal recognised incomeand expense for the year - - - 26,324,026 26,324,026Dividend 12 - - - (3,590,705) (3,590,705)Issue of ordinary shares pursuantto ESOS before bonus issue 740,760 8,334,526 (937,349) - 8,137,937Issue of bonus shares 57,990,520 (38,928,755) - (19,061,765) -Issue of ordinary shares pursuantto ESOS after bonus issue 178,880 651,084 (175,907) - 654,057Share options granted under ESOS:Recognised in profit or loss - - (98,020) - (98,020)Included in investments in subsidiaries - - 1,199,318 - 1,199,318
At 31 December 2007 87,164,660 651,084 3,030,955 3,721,203 94,567,902

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



GROUP COMPANYNote 2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM(restated,Note 2.3(b))
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 39,290,798 33,279,146 27,633,790 3,615,403Adjustments for:Dividend income 3 - - (33,439,860) (5,896,840)Gain on disposal of other investment 5 - (996) - (996)Interest income 5 (1,421,172) (360,912) (1,785,272) (597,949)Interest expense 6 6,620,487 4,877,044 1,832,873 -Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,plant and equipment 7 11,046 (49,098) - 17Amortisation of development costs 7 288,387 142,861 - -Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 7 20,345 10,695 - -Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7 41,008,814 31,218,924 16,242 12,486Impairment of property, plant and equipment 7 286,786 - - -Property, plant and equipment written off 7 609,362 728,901 - -Provision for doubtful debts 7 5,092,110 324,286 - -Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 7 - (153,444) - -Bad debts recovered 7 (44,725) - - -Write-down of inventories 7 1,605,457 786,767 - -Share options granted under ESOS 1,101,298 2,853,281 (98,020) 518,367Share of profit of jointly controlled entities (106,236) - - -Share of loss/(profit) of associates 709,635 (669,811) - -
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 95,072,392 72,987,644 (5,840,247) (2,349,512)Decrease in inventories 2,440,168 2,840,856 - -(Increase)/Decrease in short term receivables (30,076,493) (19,005,690) 126,916 61,816Decrease/(Increase) in lease receivables 2,287,176 (4,999,118) - -Decrease/(Increase) in long term receivables 1,433,372 (1,471,785) - -Increase in amount due from subsidiaries - - (103,399,495) (4,130,950)Increase in amount due from jointly controlled entities (246,464) - (55,646) -(Increase)/Decrease in amount due from an associate (5,984,704) 506,461 - -Increase/(Decrease) in payables 10,079,711 2,187,209 (102,903) 151,042Increase in amount due to jointly controlled entities 585,780 - - -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 75,590,938 53,045,577 (109,271,375) (6,267,604)Interest paid (5,727,267) (4,890,313) (939,653) -Taxes paid (3,002,359) (693,716) (1,227,168) (673,717)Taxes refunded - 587,526 - -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 66,861,312 48,049,074 (111,438,196) (6,941,321)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS69DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS 70 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM(restated,Note 2.3(b))
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (121,642,371) (61,470,328) (16,273) (24,082)Prepayment of land lease (715,000) - - -Proceeds from disposal of property,plant and equipment 2,711,504 8,753,812 - 1,932Expenditure on development costs (954,984) (460,753) - -Proceeds from disposal of other investment - 500,996 - 500,996Investments in subsidiaries - - - (4)Investment in other investment - (500,000) - (500,000)Acquisition of jointly controlled entities (1,490,000) - (232,651) -Acquisition of associates (3,396,943) - - -Interest received 1,421,172 512,968 982,206 597,949Net dividend received - - 33,439,860 2,961,640
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (124,066,622) (52,663,305) 34,173,142 3,538,431
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 8,791,994 2,724,200 8,791,994 2,724,200Draw down of term loans 11,220,329 20,938,895 - -Repayment of term loans (10,801,608) (15,412,238) - -Proceeds from bankers' acceptances 11,180,000 31,733,000 - -Repayment of bankers' acceptances (17,280,000) (30,483,000) - -Draw down of commercial papers 78,373,342 - 78,373,342 -Repayment of hire purchase (48,431) (16,603) - -Proceeds from subscription of ordinary shares by minority interests 5,151 - - -Dividends paid (3,590,705) (3,044,142) (3,590,705) (3,044,142)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 77,850,072 6,440,112 83,574,631 (319,942)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007



GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM(restated,Note 2.3(b))
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20,644,762 1,825,881 6,309,577 (3,722,832)EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 1,752,156 1,740,637 - -CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 18,632,131 15,065,613 2,713,016 6,435,848
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 41,029,049 18,632,131 9,022,593 2,713,016

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
GROUP COMPANYNote 2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Deposits with licensed banks 27 7,936,989 4,793,449 5,606,935 2,464,181Cash and bank balances 35,000,470 16,782,183 3,415,658 248,835Bank overdrafts 32 (1,908,410) (2,943,501) - -
41,029,049 18,632,131 9,022,593 2,713,016

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS71DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 72 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main Board of BursaMalaysia Securities Berhad ("Bursa Securities") in Malaysia since 31 January 2008. The Company was previously listed on the MESDAQMarket of Bursa Securities. The principal place of business of the Company is located at 8, Green Hall, 10200 Penang, Malaysia.
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 15. There havebeen no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year except for the involvement in gaming and leisureactivities as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors on22 April 2008.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and applicable Financial Reporting Standards inMalaysia. At the beginning of the current financial year, the Group and the Company had adopted revised FRSs as described fully inNote 2.3.
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have also been prepared on a historical basis.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM").

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation

i. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the ability to control the financial and operating policies so as to obtainbenefits from their activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertibleare considered when assessing whether the Group has such power over another entity.
In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulatedimpairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carryingamounts is included in profit or loss.

ii. Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at thebalance sheet date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continueto be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, intragroupbalances, transactions and unrealised gains or losses are eliminated in full. Uniform accounting policies are adopted in theconsolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

31 December 2007



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(a) Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation (Contd.)
ii. Basis of Consolidation (Contd.)

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method. The purchase method of accounting involvesallocating the cost of the acquisition to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumedat the date of acquisition. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued, plus any costs directly attributable to theacquisition.
Any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilitiesand contingent liabilities represents goodwill. Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiableassets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by the Group. It is measuredat the minorities' share of the fair value of the subsidiaries' identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date and theminorities' share of changes in the subsidiaries' equity since then.

(b) Associates
Associates are entities in which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a jointventure. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not incontrol or joint control over those policies.
Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.Under the equity method, the investment in associate is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate. The Group's share of the net profit or loss of the associateis recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. Where there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,the Group recognises its share of such changes. In applying the equity method, unrealised gains and losses on transactionsbetween the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associate. After application ofthe equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with respect to theGroup's net investment in the associate. The associate is equity accounted for from the date the Group obtains significantinfluence until the date the Group ceases to have significant influence over the associate.
Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortised. Any excess of theGroup's share of the net fair value of the associate's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of theinvestment is excluded from the carrying amount of the investment and is instead included as income in the determination ofthe Group's share of the associate's profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any long-terminterests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses,unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 74 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(b) Associates (Contd.)
The most recent available audited or management financial statements of the associates are used by the Group in applying theequity method. Uniform accounting policies are adopted for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in associates are stated at cost less any accumulated impairmentlosses.
On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profitor loss.

(c) Jointly Controlled Entities
The Group has interests in joint ventures which are jointly controlled entities. A joint venture is a contractual arrangementwhereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control, and a jointly controlled entity is ajoint venture that involves the establishment of a separate entity which each venturer has an interest.
Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method ofaccounting as described in Note 2.2(b).
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less any accumulatedimpairment losses.
On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profitor loss.

(d) Intangible Assets
i. Research and Development Costs

All research costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstratethe technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to completeand its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources tocomplete the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product developmentexpenditures which do not meet these criteria are expensed when incurred.
Development costs, considered to have finite useful lives, are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortisedusing the straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five years. Impairment isassessed whenever there is an indication of impairment and the amortisation period and method are also reviewed at leastat each balance sheet date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carryingamount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated withthe item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part isderecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which theyare incurred.
Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment except for freehold land are stated at cost less accumulateddepreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Capital work in progress is also not depreciated asthis asset is not available for use. Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis towrite off the cost of each asset to its residual value over the estimated useful life, at the following annual rates:
Buildings 2%Renovation 10%Electrical installation 10%Motor vehicles 10 - 20%Gaming machines 20%Plant, machinery, fittings and equipment 10 - 20%Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10 - 20%
The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that the amount,method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the futureeconomic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any and the net carrying amount is recognised in profitor loss.

(f) Impairment of Non-financial Assets
The carrying amounts of assets, other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets (or disposal groups) held forsale, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indicationexists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the amount of impairment loss.
For the purpose of impairment testing of these assets, recoverable amount is determined on an individual asset basis unless theasset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, recoverableamount is determined for the cash-generating unit ("CGU") to which the asset belongs to.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS75DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
31 December 2007



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 76 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(f) Impairment of Non-financial Assets (Contd.)
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessingvalue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflectscurrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of anasset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of anygoodwill allocated to those units or groups of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit orgroups of units on a pro-rata basis.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used todetermine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of an asset otherthan goodwill is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amountthat would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset inprior years. A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in profit or loss.

(g) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined as follows:
Gaming and amusement machines, coin and notes counting machines and binding machines - specific identificationSpare parts, gaming and amusement accessories,table game equipment and accessories - weighted average basisTrading merchandise - weighted average basis
Cost of inventories consists of the purchase price plus the cost of bringing the inventories to their present location. Net realisablevalue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimatedcosts necessary to make the sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(h) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has become a party to the contractual provisions ofthe instrument.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.Interest, dividends and gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are recognised directly in equity. Financialinstruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or torealise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
i. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at banks, deposit at calland short term highly liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bankoverdrafts.
ii. Other Non-Current Investments

Non-current investments other than investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are stated at costless any accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceedsand its carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
iii. Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad debts are written off when identified. An estimate is madefor doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the balance sheet date.
iv. Trade Payables

Trade payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and servicesreceived.
v. Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributabletransaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortisedcost using the effective interest method.
vi. Equity Instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which theyare declared.
The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity, net of tax. Equity transactioncosts comprise only those incremental external costs directly attributable to the equity transaction which would otherwisehave been avoided.

vii. Derivative Financial Instruments
Derivative financial instruments are not recognised in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 78 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(i) Leases
i. Classification

A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group all the risks and rewards incidental toownership. Leases of land and buildings are classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as leases of otherassets and the land and building elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the purposes oflease classification. All leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards are classified as operating leases.
ii. Finance Leases - the Group as Lessee

Assets acquired by way of hire purchase or finance leases are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair valuesand the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the leases, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The corresponding liability is included in the balance sheet as borrowings. Incalculating the present value of the minimum lease payments, the discount factor used is the interest rate implicit in thelease, when it is practicable to determine; otherwise, the Company's incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial directcosts are also added to the carrying amount of such assets.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance costs and the reduction of the outstanding liability. Finance costs,which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, arerecognised in the profit or loss over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge onthe remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
The depreciation policy for leased assets is in accordance with that for depreciable property, plant and equipment asdescribed in Note 2.2(e).

iii. Finance Leases - the Group as Lessor
Assets held under finance lease are presented on the balance sheet as receivables at an amount equal to the net investmentin the leases. The lease finance income is recognised in the profit or loss over the term of the relevant lease so as to producea constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding.

iv. Operating Leases - the Group as Lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Theaggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease termon a straight-line basis.
In the case of a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments or the up-front payments made are allocated,whenever necessary, between the land and the buildings elements in proportion to the relative fair values for leaseholdinterests in the land element and buildings element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The up-front paymentrepresents prepaid lease payments and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

v. Operating Leases - the Group as Lessor
Assets leased out under operating leases are presented on the balance sheets according to the nature of the assets. Rentalincome from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease (Note 2.2(o)(iv)).Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leasedasset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(j) Borrowing Costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(k) Income Tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of incometaxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at thebalance sheet date.
Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporarydifferences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused taxcredits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises fromgoodwill or negative goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a businesscombination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability issettled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is recognisedas income or an expense and included in the profit or loss for the period, except when it arises from a transaction which isrecognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity, or when it arises from a businesscombination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred tax is included in the resulting goodwill or the amount of anyexcess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities overthe cost of the combination.

(l) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflowof resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can bemade. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect ofthe time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, therisks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognisedas finance cost.

(m) Employee Benefits
i. Short Term Benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which the associatedservices are rendered by employees. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave arerecognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences.Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 80 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(m) Employee Benefits (Contd.)
ii. Defined Contribution Plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into separateentities or funds and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if any of the funds do not holdsufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years.Such contributions are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss as incurred. As required by law, companies in Malaysiamake such contributions to the Employees Provident Fund ("EPF"). Some of the Group's foreign subsidiaries also makecontributions to their respective countries' statutory pension schemes.
iii. Share-based Compensation

The Company's Employee Share Options Scheme ("ESOS"), an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan, allows theGroup's employees to acquire ordinary shares of the Company. The total fair value of share options granted to employeesis recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve within equity over the vestingperiod and taking into account the probability that the options will vest. The fair value of share options is measured at grantdate, taking into account, if any, the market vesting conditions upon which the options were granted but excluding theimpact of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the numberof options that are expected to become exercisable on vesting date.
At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to becomeexercisable on vesting date. It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss, and acorresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period. The equity amount is recognised in the share optionreserve until the option is exercised, upon which it will be transferred to share premium, or until the option expires, uponwhich it will be transferred directly to retained earnings.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to equity when the options areexercised.

(n) Foreign Currencies
i. Functional and Presentation Currency

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economicenvironment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The consolidated financial statements are presentedin Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company's functional currency.
ii. Foreign Currency Transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functionalcurrency (foreign currencies) are recorded in the functional currencies using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates ofthe transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the ratesprevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currencyare not translated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items, are includedin profit or loss for the period.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contd.)

(n) Foreign Currencies (Contd.)
iii. Foreign Operations

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the presentationcurrency (RM) of the consolidated financial statements are translated into RM as follows:
- Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate prevailing at the balance sheet date;
- Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates for the year, whichapproximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; and
- All resulting exchange differences are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve within equity.

(o) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can bereliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
i. Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised net of sales taxes and upon transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer.Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the considerationdue, associated costs or the possible return of goods.
ii. Revenue from Technical Support and Management

Revenue relating to technical support and management is recognised when the Group's right to receive payment isestablished or when services are rendered.
iii. Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
iv. Rental Income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with terms of agreement.
v. Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive payment is established.
vi. Management Fees

Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 82 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Effects Arising from Adoption of New and Revised FRSs

On 1 January 2007, the Group and the Company adopted the following revised FRSs:
FRS 117: LeasesFRS 124: Related Party Disclosures
The MASB has also issued FRS 6: Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources and Amendment to FRS 1192004 : EmployeeBenefits - Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures which will be effective for financial periods beginning on or after1 January 2007. These FRSs are, however, not applicable to the Group or the Company.
The adoption of the revised FRS 124 gives rise to additional disclosures but did not result in significant changes in accounting policiesof the Group and of the Company. The principal changes in accounting policies and their effects resulting from the adoption of therevised FRS 117 are discussed below:
(a) FRS 117: Leases

(i) Leasehold land held for own use
Prior to 1 January 2007, leasehold land held for own use was classified as property, plant and equipment and was statedat cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The adoption of the revised FRS 117 hasresulted in a change in the accounting policy relating to the classification of leases of land and buildings. Leases of landand buildings are classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as leases of other assets and the land andbuildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease classification.Leasehold land held for own use is now classified as operating lease and where necessary, the minimum lease paymentsor the up-front payments made are allocated between the land and the buildings elements in proportion to the relative fairvalues for leasehold interests in the land element and buildings element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The up-front payment relating to the land element represents prepaid lease payments and are amortised on a straight-line basisover the lease term.
The Group has applied the change in accounting policy in respect of leasehold land in accordance with the transitionalprovisions of FRS 117. At 1 January 2007, the unamortised amount of leasehold land is retained as the surrogate carryingamount of prepaid land lease payments as allowed by the transitional provisions. The reclassification of leasehold land asprepaid land lease payments has been accounted for retrospectively and as disclosed in Note 2.3(b), certain comparativeshave been restated. The effects on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007 are set out below:

2007RM
Decrease in property, plant and equipment (1,421,877)Increase in prepaid land lease payments 1,421,877

There were no effects on the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the Company'sseparate financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Effects Arising from Adoption of New and Revised FRSs (Contd.)

(b) Restatement of Comparatives
The following comparative amounts have been restated as a result of adopting the revised FRS 117:

Increase/Previously (Decrease)Description of change Stated FRS 117 RestatedRM RM RM
At 31 December 2006
GROUP
Property, plant and equipment 136,382,876 (727,222) 135,655,654Prepaid land lease payments - 727,222 727,222

For the year ended 31 December 2006
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 31,229,619 (10,695) 31,218,924Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments - 10,695 10,695

2.4 Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new and revised FRS, amendment to FRS and Interpretationswere issued but not yet effective and have not been applied by the Group and the Company:

Effective for financialperiods beginning onFRS, Amendment to FRS and Interpretations or after
FRS 107: Cash Flow Statements 1 July 2007FRS 111: Construction Contracts 1 July 2007FRS 112: Income Taxes 1 July 2007FRS 118: Revenue 1 July 2007FRS 120: Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure ofGovernment Assistance 1 July 2007FRS 134: Interim Financial Reporting 1 July 2007FRS 137: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 1 July 2007FRS 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement DeferredAmendment to FRS 121: The Effects of Changes in Foreign ExchangeRates - Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 1 July 2007IC Interpretation 1: Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities 1 July 2007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 84 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.4 Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective (Contd.)

Effective for financialperiods beginning onFRS, Amendment to FRS and Interpretations or after
IC Interpretation 2: Members' Shares in Co-operative Entities andSimilar Instruments 1 July 2007IC Interpretation 5: Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 1 July 2007IC Interpretation 6: Liabilities arising from Participating in a SpecificMarket - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 1 July 2007IC Interpretation 7: Applying the Restatement Approach underFRS 1292004 - Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 1 July 2007IC Interpretation 8: Scope of FRS 2 1 July 2007
The above new and revised FRS, amendment to FRS and Interpretations are expected to have no significant impact on the financialstatements of the Group and the Company upon their initial application.
The Group and the Company are exempted from disclosing the possible impact, if any, to the financial statements upon the initialapplication of FRS 139.

2.5 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments
(a) Critical Judgments Made in Applying Accounting Policies

The following is the judgement made by management in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies that has themost significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
i. Finance Leases - the Group as Lessor

The Group has entered into contracts for renting of gaming equipment. The Group has determined that they transfersubstantially all the risks and rewards incident to ownership of the equipment to the lessees pursuant to FRS 117: Leases.
(b) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that havea significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial yearare discussed below.
i. Depreciation of Gaming Machines

The cost of gaming machines for technical support and management division is depreciated on a straight-line basis overthe assets' useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these gaming machines to be 5 years. These are commonlife expectancies applied in the industry. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments couldimpact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could berevised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
2.5 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments (Contd.)

(b) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Contd.)
ii. Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances to the extent that it isprobable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and capital allowances can be utilised. Significantmanagement judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon thelikely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The unrecognised tax losses andcapital allowances of the Group was RM264,000 (2006: RM490,000).

3. REVENUE
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Sales and marketing 152,734,769 121,299,367 - -Technical support and management 119,214,115 89,513,238 - -Dividend income from subsidiaries - - 33,439,860 5,896,840Others 4,357,656 4,567,683 - -
276,306,540 215,380,288 33,439,860 5,896,840

4. COST OF SALES
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

Sales and marketing 127,307,705 105,975,918Technical support and management 54,741,980 40,044,080Others 4,076,720 3,175,705
186,126,405 149,195,703
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5. OTHER INCOME
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Interest income 1,421,172 360,912 1,785,272 597,949Rental income 13,527 27,417 - -Gain on disposal of other investment - 996 - 996Sundry income 193,158 19,862 1,746 2,763
1,627,857 409,187 1,787,018 601,708

6. FINANCE COSTS
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Interest on:- Bank overdrafts 115,569 240,788 - -- Bankers' acceptances 119,858 446,034 - -- Hire purchase payables 13,954 2,739 - -- Term loans 4,538,233 4,187,483 - -- Commercial papers 1,832,873 - 1,832,873 -
Total interest expense 6,620,487 4,877,044 1,832,873 -Bank and other charges 323,895 173,333 18,462 201

6,944,382 5,050,377 1,851,335 201
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The following amounts have been included in arriving at profit before tax:

GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM(restated)
Amortisation of development costs (Note 19)- included in administrative expenses 288,387 142,861 - -Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments (Note 14) 20,345 10,695 - -Auditors' remuneration: 139,361 123,160 25,000 60,000- statutory audits:- current year 127,617 74,160 25,000 20,000- underprovision in prior year - 2,000 - -- special audits 11,744 47,000 - 40,000
Bad debts recovered (44,725) - - -Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 41,008,814 31,218,924 16,242 12,486Employee benefits expense (Note 8) 14,694,146 12,434,206 255,106 1,313,265Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 13):- included in administrative expenses 286,786 - - -Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 11,046 (49,098) - 17Net foreign exchange losses 45,752 1,162,663 2,598,498 149,127Non-executive directors' remuneration (Note 9) 211,000 556,000 206,000 551,000Property, plant and equipment written off 609,362 728,901 - -Provision for doubtful debts 5,092,110 324,286 - -Operating leases:- minimum lease payments for land and buildings 2,256,362 1,178,511 60,000 60,000Reversal of provision for doubtful debts - (153,444) - -Write-down of inventories 1,605,457 786,767 - -
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Wages and salaries 12,708,600 9,044,802 335,063 1,038,795Social security contributions 118,938 85,425 812 3,932Contributions to defined contribution plan 1,389,243 971,003 40,118 124,520Short term accumulating compensated absence 74,667 20,329 (22,867) (3,349)Share options granted under ESOS 1,101,298 2,484,281 (98,020) 149,367
15,392,746 12,605,840 255,106 1,313,265Less:Capitalised in development cost (Note 19) (698,600) (171,634) - -
14,694,146 12,434,206 255,106 1,313,265

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive directors' remuneration amounting to RM2,513,734(2006: RM1,972,036) and RM240,096 (2006: RM869,541) respectively as further disclosed in Note 9.

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Directors of the Company:Executive:Salaries and bonus 1,496,608 1,560,023 227,572 595,974
Non-executive:Fees 176,000 140,000 176,000 140,000Share options granted under ESOS - 369,000 - 369,000Other emoluments 30,000 42,000 30,000 42,000

206,000 551,000 206,000 551,000
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (CONTD.)
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Directors of the Subsidiaries:Executive:Salaries and bonus 816,756 298,232 10,132 198,078Share options granted under ESOS 185,370 98,811 2,392 75,489Fees 15,000 14,970 - -
1,017,126 412,013 12,524 273,567

Non-executive:Fees 5,000 5,000 - -
Total directors' remuneration 2,724,734 2,528,036 446,096 1,420,541

Analysis:Total executive directors' remuneration (Note 8) 2,513,734 1,972,036 240,096 869,541
Total non-executive directors' remuneration (Note 7) 211,000 556,000 206,000 551,000

2,724,734 2,528,036 446,096 1,420,541

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Income tax:Malaysian current income tax 461,000 1,390,600 1,265,000 -Under/(Over)provided in prior year 596,471 (1,276) 44,764 (32,012)
1,057,471 1,389,324 1,309,764 (32,012)

Deferred tax (Note 34):Relating to origination and reversalof temporary differences 353,148 186,490 - -Relating to changes in tax rates (33,277) (26,430) - -(Over)/Underprovided in prior year (400,158) 259,534 - -
(80,287) 419,594 - -

Total income tax expense 977,184 1,808,918 1,309,764 (32,012)
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTD.)
Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 27% (2006: 28%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.The domestic statutory tax rate will be reduced to 26% from the current year's rate of 27%, effective year of assessment 2008 and to25% in subsequent years of assessment. The computation of deferred tax as at 31 December 2007 has reflected these changes.
The taxation of one of the subsidiaries is fixed at RM20,000 per annum under the Labuan Offshore Business Activity Tax Act, 1990 Section7(1). Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effectiveincome tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:

GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM
Profit before tax 39,290,798 33,279,146 27,633,790 3,615,403

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 27% (2006: 28%) 10,608,515 9,318,161 7,461,123 1,012,313Effect of different tax rates in other countriesand for Labuan offshore business activities (12,708,397) (8,944,580) - -Effect of income subject to tax rate of 20% (45,873) (45,500) - -Effect of share of profits of jointly controlled entities (28,684) - - -Effect of share of loss/(profit) of associates 191,602 (187,547) - -Effect of changes in tax rates (33,277) (26,430) - -Income not subject to tax (33,776) (31,801) (7,950,919) (1,807,547)Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,840,242 1,493,204 1,754,796 795,234Expenses not allowed to be carried forward - 17,046 - -Utilisation of previously unrecognised unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances (71,723) (41,893) - -Deferred tax asset not recognised in respect of current year's tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances 62,242 - - -Under/(Over)provision of income tax in prior year 596,471 (1,276) 44,764 (32,012)(Over)/Underprovision of deferred tax in prior year (400,158) 259,534 - -
Income tax expense for the year 977,184 1,808,918 1,309,764 (32,012)

Tax savings during the financial year arising from:
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

Utilisation of current year's tax losses 309,000 -Utilisation of previously unrecognised unused tax losses 71,723 11,436
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Companyby the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.
2007 2006(restated)

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (RM) 38,300,969 31,470,228

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 864,334,000 843,629,000

Basic earnings per share for profit for the year (sen) 4.43 3.73

The comparative basic earnings per share has been restated to take into account the effect of the issue of bonus shares (Note 28)on profit for that year.
(b) Diluted

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Companyand the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year have been adjusted for the dilutive effects ofall potential ordinary shares, i.e. share options granted to employees.
2007 2006(restated)

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (RM) 38,300,969 31,470,228

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 864,334,000 843,629,000Effect of dilution on share options 18,029,000 14,664,000
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and issuable 882,363,000 858,293,000

Diluted earnings per share for profit for the year (sen) 4.34 3.67

The comparative diluted earnings per share has been restated to take into account the effect of the issue of bonus shares (Note 28)on profit for that year.
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12. DIVIDENDS
Dividend Recognised Net Dividends perin Year Ordinary Share2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM Sen Sen

First and final dividend in respect of financial year 2005:15% less 28% taxation, on 281,865,000 ordinary shares,approved on 28 June 2006 and paid on 18 August 2006:
- net dividend payable to shareholders - 3,044,142- income tax payable to Inland Revenue Board Malaysia - 1,183,833

- 4,227,975 - 1.50First and final dividend in respect of financial year 2006:12.41% tax exempt, on 289,339,700 ordinary shares,approved on 26 June 2007 and paid on 28 August 2007 3,590,705 - 1.24 -
3,590,705 4,227,975 1.24 1.50

The first and final dividend in respect of financial year 2005 has been paid out of income received by the Company which is exemptedfrom income tax under paragraph 2(b) of the Income Tax (Exemption) (No.16) Order 1991 and is exempted from income tax in Malaysiain the hands of the shareholders under paragraph 3(1) of the Income Tax (Exemption) (No. 10) Order 2000. Since neither order exemptsthe payment of this dividend by the Company from the provisions of Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1967, income tax of 28%amounting to RM1,183,833 has been deducted from the gross amount of the dividend. The tax deducted of RM1,183,833, less availabletax credit under Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1967 which amounted to RM94,000, has been recognised in equity. Since the dividendis tax exempt in the hands of the shareholders, dividend per ordinary share has been calculated by dividing the gross amount of dividendof RM4,227,975 by the number of ordinary shares in issue of 281,865,000 ordinary shares.
In view of the coming into force of the Income Tax (Exemption)(No.22) Order 2007 and the revocation of the Income Tax (Exemption)(No.16)Order 1991 and Income Tax (Exemption)(No.10) Order 2000, the dividends paid to the shareholders of the Company distributed on 28August 2007 should be treated as tax exempt dividends and the shareholders are not entitled to claim a refund for the tax deducted inrespect of the dividend payments pursuant to Section 110 of the Income Tax Act, 1967. As such, the net dividend paid shall be deemedas gross dividend paid and the rate of dividend is RM0.1241 per share.
With the enforcement of the Income Tax (Exemption)(No.22) Order 2007, the first and final exempt dividend in respect of financial year2006 has been paid out of income received by the Company which is exempted under paragraph 3(b) of the Income Tax (Exemption)(No. 22) Order 2007 and is exempted from income tax in Malaysia in the hands of the shareholders under paragraph 5(3) of Schedule 7Aof the Income Tax Act, 1967. Income tax has therefore not been deducted from this dividend.
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a first and final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2007, of non-taxexempt dividend of 5% less 26% taxation and tax exempt dividend of 1.8% will be proposed for shareholders' approval. The financialstatements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will beaccounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained profits in the financial year ending 31 December 2008.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant,Long term machinery, Furniture,

Freehold leasehold fittings fittings and Capital
land and land and Electrical Motor Gaming and office work-in-
buildings buildings Renovation installation vehicles machines equipment equipment progress TotalGROUP RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

At 31 December 2007
Cost
At 1 January 2007
As previously stated 4,394,400 1,683,930 3,059,344 70,148 1,189,988 176,275,999 405,140 9,088,749 - 196,167,698
Effects of adopting FRS 117 - (770,000) - - - - - - - (770,000)
At 1 January 2007 (restated) 4,394,400 913,930 3,059,344 70,148 1,189,988 176,275,999 405,140 9,088,749 - 195,397,698
Additions - 685,000 2,676,510 - 1,103,954 107,514,115 597,295 3,040,841 6,103,856 121,721,571
Disposals/written off - - (595,640) - (36,791) (4,658,762) (289) (506,670) - (5,798,152)Exchange differences - - (242,272) - (42,338) (13,114,412) - (367,422) - (13,766,444)
At 31 December 2007 4,394,400 1,598,930 4,897,942 70,148 2,214,813 266,016,940 1,002,146 11,255,498 6,103,856 297,554,673
Accumulated Depreciation

and Impairment Losses
At 1 January 2007
As previously stated 221,732 115,886 355,477 68,881 753,365 54,834,471 142,839 3,292,171 - 59,784,822Effects of adopting FRS 117 - (42,778) - - - - - - - (42,778)
At 1 January 2007 (restated) 221,732 73,108 355,477 68,881 753,365 54,834,471 142,839 3,292,171 - 59,742,044
Depreciation charge for the year: 55,432 30,837 389,910 1,266 245,038 39,189,538 68,830 1,211,920 - 41,192,771
Recognised in income

statement (Note 7) 55,432 30,837 389,910 1,266 245,038 39,189,538 68,830 1,027,963 - 41,008,814Capitalised in development
costs (Note 19) - - - - - - - 183,957 - 183,957

Disposals/written off - - (82,844) - (5,181) (2,266,824) (109) (111,282) - (2,466,240)
Impairment loss recognisedin income statement (Note 7) - 2,542 - - - 278,701 - 5,543 - 286,786Exchange differences - - (32,600) - (9,539) (4,672,637) - (93,988) - (4,808,764)
At 31 December 2007 277,164 106,487 629,943 70,147 983,683 87,363,249 211,560 4,304,364 - 93,946,597
Analysed as:

Accumulated depreciation 277,164 103,945 629,943 70,147 983,683 87,069,596 211,560 4,298,821 - 93,644,859
Accumulated impairment

losses - 2,542 - - - 293,653 - 5,543 - 301,738
At 31 December 2007 277,164 106,487 629,943 70,147 983,683 87,363,249 211,560 4,304,364 - 93,946,597
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 4,117,236 1,492,443 4,267,999 1 1,231,130 178,653,691 790,586 6,951,134 6,103,856 203,608,076
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.)
Plant,Long term machinery, Furniture,Freehold leasehold fittings fittings andland and land and Electrical Motor Gaming and officebuildings buildings Renovation installation vehicles machines equipment equipment TotalRM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

At 31 December 2006
Cost
At 1 January 2006As previously stated 4,394,400 1,683,930 1,768,413 70,148 1,203,707 146,767,923 337,936 7,033,164 163,259,621Effects of adopting FRS 117 - (770,000) - - - - - - (770,000)
At 1 January 2006 (restated) 4,394,400 913,930 1,768,413 70,148 1,203,707 146,767,923 337,936 7,033,164 162,489,621Additions - - 1,505,085 - 106,402 57,346,199 67,204 2,445,438 61,470,328Disposals/written off - - (49,389) - (108,620) (12,940,301) - (69,257) (13,167,567)Reclassified as lease receivables - - - - - (4,013,073) - - (4,013,073)Exchange differences - - (164,765) - (11,501) (10,884,749) - (320,596) (11,381,611)
At 31 December 2006 4,394,400 913,930 3,059,344 70,148 1,189,988 176,275,999 405,140 9,088,749 195,397,698
Accumulated Depreciationand Impairment Losses
At 1 January 2006As previously stated 166,299 86,914 104,214 61,866 700,736 31,831,892 86,215 2,376,240 35,414,376Effects of adopting FRS 117 - (32,083) - - - - - - (32,083)
At 1 January 2006 (restated) 166,299 54,831 104,214 61,866 700,736 31,831,892 86,215 2,376,240 35,382,293Depreciation charge for the year: 55,433 18,277 272,320 7,015 114,299 29,746,150 56,624 1,027,061 31,297,179Recognised in income statement (Note 7) 55,433 18,277 272,320 7,015 114,299 29,746,150 56,624 948,806 31,218,924Capitalised in developmentcosts  (Note 19) - - - - - - - 78,255 78,255
Disposals/written off - - (3,569) - (57,120) (3,625,085) - (48,178) (3,733,952)Exchange differences - - (17,488) - (4,550) (3,118,486) - (62,952) (3,203,476)
At 31 December 2006 221,732 73,108 355,477 68,881 753,365 54,834,471 142,839 3,292,171 59,742,044
Analysed as:Accumulated depreciation 221,732 73,108 355,477 68,881 753,365 54,819,519 142,839 3,292,171 59,727,092Accumulated impairment losses - - - - - 14,952 - - 14,952
At 31 December 2006 221,732 73,108 355,477 68,881 753,365 54,834,471 142,839 3,292,171 59,742,044
Net carrying amountAt 31 December 2006 4,172,668 840,822 2,703,867 1,267 436,623 121,441,528 262,301 5,796,578 135,655,654
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.)
Furniture,fittings andofficeequipmentCOMPANY RM

At 31 December 2007
CostAt 1 January 2007 77,193Additions 16,273
At 31 December 2007 93,466
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2007 24,061Depreciation charge for the year (Note 7) 16,242
At 31 December 2007 40,303
Net carrying amountAt 31 December 2007 53,163

At 31 December 2006
CostAt 1 January 2006 55,110Additions 24,082Disposals/written off (1,999)
At 31 December 2006 77,193
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2006 11,625Depreciation charge for the year (Note 7) 12,486Disposals/written off (50)
At 31 December 2006 24,061
Net carrying amountAt 31 December 2006 53,132
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.)
(a) The net carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment which have been charged to licensed banks as securities for term loansand banking facilities granted to the subsidiaries are as follows:

GROUP2007 2006RM RM(restated)
Freehold land and buildings 4,984,718 4,374,642

(b) A motor vehicle of the Group with a net carrying amount of RM78,378 (2006: RM109,710) is held in trust in the name of a directorof the Company.
(c) During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at aggregate costs of RM121,721,571 (2006:RM61,470,328) of which RM79,200 (2006: Nil) was acquired by means of hire purchase. The motor vehicles of the Group with net carrying amounts of RM138,444 (2006: RM52,700) are held under hire purchase agreements.

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
GROUP2007 2006RM RM(restated)

At 1 January 727,222 737,917Additions 715,000 -Amortisation for the year (Note 7) (20,345) (10,695)
At 31 December 1,421,877 727,222

Analysed as:Long term leasehold land 1,421,877 727,222

Leasehold land with an aggregate carrying value of RM1,421,877 (2006: RM727,222) are pledged as securities for borrowings (Note 32).
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY2007 2006RM RM

Unquoted shares at cost 44,348,530 43,149,212

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
Proportion ofownership interestCountry of 2007 2006Name of subsidiaries incorporation % % Principal activities

Held by the Company:
RGB Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Manufacturing, refurbishment, technical support,and maintenance, sales and marketing of gamingand amusement machines and equipment, sales and marketing of security surveillance products and systems for local and overseas markets.
RGB Ltd. Malaysia 100 100 Investment holding, sales and marketing,technical support and management ofgaming and amusement machines andequipment solely for the overseas markets.
Data Touch Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Renting of property.
CDI Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 60 60 Designing and trading of signages and systems.
Dreamgate (Singapore) Singapore 100 100 Manufacturing, sales, maintenance andPte. Ltd.* management of gaming and amusementmachines and equipment, and the sales andmarketing of security surveillance products andsystems.
Macrocept Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Investment holding.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS97DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
31 December 2007



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 98 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTD.)
Proportion ofownership interestCountry of 2007 2006Name of subsidiaries incorporation % % Principal activities

Held through subsidiaries:
RGB (Macau) Limited * Macau 96 96 Sales and marketing, technical support and management of gaming and amusement machines and equipment for Macau and surrounding market.
RGB (Cambodia) Ltd.* Cambodia 100 - Sales and marketing, technical support andmaintenance of gaming and amusementmachines and equipment.
Mekong Recreation Club Ltd. * Cambodia 70 - Gaming and leisure activities, international standard hotel, restaurant, modern night club,fun club, spa centre and such other business activities.
* Audited by firm other than Ernst & Young.
(a) On 26 January 2007, RGB Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, RGB (Cambodia) Ltd. in Cambodia with registered capital of Riels 20,000,000 (RM17,272).

On 15 June 2007, Macrocept Sdn. Bhd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, subscribed to 70% of the equity interest in Mekong Recreation Club Ltd., which is incorporated in Cambodia with a total registered capital of Riels 20,000,000, for Riels 14,000,000 (RM12,019).
These subsidiaries have contributed the following result to the Group:

2007RM
Revenue -Loss for the year (1,970,414)
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTD.)
The cash flow on incorporation of these subsidiaries is as follows:

2007RM
Total cash outflow of the Group 29,291Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries being incorporated (29,291)
Net cash outflow of the Group -

(b) During the year, Macrocept Sdn. Bhd. has paid an amount of Riels 5,586,000,000 (RM4,674,281) to subscribe for additional sharesin Mekong Recreation Club Ltd. The amount is classified as share application monies as the shares have not yet been allotted as at 31 December 2007.

16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Unquoted shares at cost 1,490,000 - 232,651 -Share of post-acquisition reserves 105,689 - - -
1,595,689 - 232,651 -Exchange differences (3,315) - - -
1,592,374 - 232,651 -

Details of the jointly controlled entities are as follows:
Proportion ofownership interestName of jointly Country of 2007 2006controlled entities incorporation % % Principal activities

Held by the Company:
RGB Abbiati Pte. Ltd. Singapore 50 - Sales and marketing of gamingproducts and equipment.
RGB Xtale Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 50 - Manufacturing, refurbishment, technical supportand maintenance, sales and marketing of gaming and amusement machines and equipment, sales and marketing of security surveillance productsand systems for local and overseas markets.
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTD.)
Proportion ofownership interestName of jointly Country of 2007 2006controlled entities incorporation % % Principal activities

Held through a subsidiary:
RGB Sibel International Malaysia 50 - Manufacturing and selling of gaming layouts.Sdn. Bhd. (formerly knownas Ideal Versatile Sdn. Bhd.)
During the year, the Group has entered into joint venture agreements with three venturers to set-up three newly incorporated jointlycontrolled entities.
The Group's aggregate share of the current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, revenue and other income and expenses of the jointly controlled entities are as follows:

2007 2006RM RM
Assets and liabilitiesCurrent assets 1,883,270 -Non-current assets 2,916 -
Total assets 1,886,186 -

Current liabilities (293,109) -Non-current liabilities (703) -
Total liabilities (293,812) -

ResultsRevenue and other income 416,348 -Expenses, including financial costs and taxation (310,112) -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

Unquoted shares at cost 4,206,945 810,002Share of post-acquisition reserves 4,031 663,019
4,210,976 1,473,021Exchange differences (350,925) (199,361)
3,860,051 1,273,660

Details of the associates are as follows:
Proportion ofownership interestCountry of 2007 2006Name of associates incorporation % % Principal activities

Held through subsidiaries:
Star RGB Corporation Philippines 40 40 Dormant.
Cron Corporation Japan 50 50 Research and development, manufacturing, salesand marketing of gaming and amusementmachines and equipment.
Dreamgate Holding Co., Ltd. Cambodia 49 - Dormant.
Players Club Co., Ltd. Cambodia 35 - Gaming and leisure activities.
Chateau De Bavet Club Co., Ltd. Cambodia 40 - Operating casino operations, and all otherbusiness activities related to the gaming andleisure industry, international standard hotel,restaurant, modern night club, fun club,spa centre and such other business activities.
Rainbow World Club Ltd. Cambodia 20 - Gaming and leisure activities.
GoldenMac, Ltd. Cambodia 25 - Gaming and leisure activities.
Cash Box Entertainment Co., Ltd. Cambodia 20 - Gaming and leisure activities.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTD.)

Proportion ofownership interestCountry of 2007 2006Name of associates incorporation % % Principal activities
Held through subsidiaries:
Olympic Entertainment Co., Ltd. Cambodia 20 - Gaming and leisure activities.
Golden Beach Club Ltd. Cambodia 50 - Gaming and leisure activities.
The summarised financial information of the associates are as follows:

2007 2006RM RM
Assets and liabilitiesCurrent assets 12,819,174 5,583,286Non-current assets 9,890,694 1,142,667
Total assets 22,709,868 6,725,953

Current liabilities 15,242,167 1,867,858Non-current liabilities 1,957,303 2,417,090
Total liabilities 17,199,470 4,284,948

ResultsRevenue 10,898,303 11,322,872(Loss)/Profit for the year (2,749,570) 1,113,447

18. OTHER INVESTMENT
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

Unquoted shares at cost 4,000 4,000
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19. DEVELOPMENT COSTS
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

CostAt 1 January 1,113,117 574,109Additions 1,138,941 539,008
At 31 December 2,252,058 1,113,117
Accumulated amortisationAt 1 January 214,291 71,430Amortisation (Note 7) 288,387 142,861
At 31 December 502,678 214,291
Net carrying amount 1,749,380 898,826

Included in the additions to development costs during the year are the following:
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

Depreciation charge (Note 13) 183,957 78,255Employee benefits expense (Note 8) 698,600 171,634

20. INVENTORIES
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

CostGaming and amusement machines, coin and notes counting machines and binding machines 421,199 557,511Spare parts, gaming and amusement accessories, table game equipment and accessories 2,056,696 3,446,636Trading merchandise 521,003 119,212Goods-in-transit 4,446,858 7,368,022
7,445,756 11,491,381

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS103DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)
31 December 2007



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 104 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

Trade receivablesThird parties 108,563,618 83,537,705Related parties 120,648 4,521,712
108,684,266 88,059,417

Less: Provision for doubtful debts:Third parties (5,426,971) (467,421)
Trade receivables, net 103,257,295 87,591,996

Included in trade receivables - third parties is RM6,106,345 (2006: Nil) which is being paid by monthly installments and interest is charged at 9.7% (2006: Nil) per annum.
(a) Credit risk

The Group's primary exposure to credit risk arises through its trade receivables. The Group's trading terms with its customers aremainly on credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The credit period is generally for a periodof one to three months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control departmentto minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group has a significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposures to groups of receivables which contributedapproximately 80% (2006: 64%) of the total trade receivables as at balance sheet date. These customers contributed approximately 44% (2006: 43%) of the total revenue of the Group.
Further details on related party transactions are disclosed in Note 37.
Other information on financial risk of trade receivables are disclosed in Note 40.
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22. LEASE RECEIVABLES
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

Future minimum lease receivables:Not later than 1 year 2,350,417 2,483,388Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 2,350,417 2,483,388Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 2,879,940 5,462,730
Total future minimum lease receivables 7,580,774 10,429,506Less: Unearned finance income (855,759) (1,417,315)
Present value of finance lease receivables 6,725,015 9,012,191

Analysis of present value of finance lease receivables:Not later than 1 year 1,921,094 1,921,094Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 2,064,303 2,054,064Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 2,739,618 5,037,033
6,725,015 9,012,191Less: Amount due within 12 months (1,921,094) (1,921,094)

Amount due after 12 months 4,803,921 7,091,097

The Group has contracts for leasing of gaming equipment. These contracts are classified as finance leases as the arrangements transfersubstantially all the risks and rewards incident to ownership of the equipment to the lessees.
Other information on financial risks of finance lease receivables are disclosed in Note 40.
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23. OTHER RECEIVABLES
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Deposits 13,709,695 11,157,309 10,000 126,000Prepayments 6,434,774 1,064,192 850 795Interest receivables 109,690 51,312 40,341 51,312Sundry receivables 673,895 724,804 - -
20,928,054 12,997,617 51,191 178,107

Representing receivables:- Current 20,213,264 10,849,455 51,191 178,107- Non-current 714,790 2,148,162 - -
20,928,054 12,997,617 51,191 178,107

Included in non-current receivables are:
(a) an amount of RM295,149 (2006: RM594,082) which is secured by unquoted shares pledged to the Group, non-interest bearing andnot receivable within the next one year; and
(b) an amount of RM419,641 (2006: RM1,554,080) which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and not receivable within the next one year.
Included in the other receivables of the Group in previous year was an advance given for the purchase of gaming machines to an associateof RM814,982 which was unsecured and non-interest bearing.

24. DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, non-interest bearing, unsecured, repayable on demand and to be settled incash except for amounts due from subsidiaries amounting to RM73,500,000 (2006: Nil) on which interest is charged at 4.1% (2006: Nil)per annum and which are receivable within the next one year.

25. DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
The amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities are non-trade in nature, non-interest bearing, unsecured, repayable on demand and tobe settled in cash.

26. DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
The amounts due from associates are non-trade in nature, non-interest bearing, unsecured, repayable on demand and to be settle dincash.
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27. DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS
Included in the deposits of the Group and of the Company are amounts of RM4,889,411 (2006: RM4,793,449) and RM2,559,357(2006: RM2,464,181) respectively which are pledged to licensed banks as securities for the banking facilities granted to the Group.
Other information on financial risks of deposits with licensed banks are disclosed in Note 40.

28. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
Number ofordinaryshares ofRM0.10 each <–––––––––––––– Amount ––––––––––––––– >Share Share Total sharecapital capital capital and(Issued and (Issued and Share sharefully paid) fully paid) premium premiumRM RM RM

At 1 January 2007 282,545,000 28,254,500 30,594,229 58,848,729Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to ESOS- before bonus issue (Note 30) 7,407,600 740,760 8,334,526 9,075,286Issue of bonus shares 579,905,200 57,990,520 (38,928,755) 19,061,765Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to ESOS- after bonus issue (Note 30) 1,788,800 178,880 651,084 829,964
At 31 December 2007 871,646,600 87,164,660 651,084 87,815,744

At 1 January 2006 280,000,000 28,000,000 28,017,512 56,017,512Issue of ordinary sharespursuant to ESOS (Note 30) 2,545,000 254,500 2,576,717 2,831,217
At 31 December 2006 282,545,000 28,254,500 30,594,229 58,848,729
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28. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONTD.)
Number of Ordinary Sharesof RM0.10 each Amount2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM

Authorised share capitalAt 1 January 500,000,000 500,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000Created during the year 1,000,000,000 - 100,000,000 -
At 31 December 1,500,000,000 500,000,000 150,000,000 50,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per shareat meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.
Issue of bonus shares
During the financial year, the Company issued 579,905,200 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each credited as fully paid up on the basisof two bonus shares for every one existing ordinary share held, by way of the capitalisation of share premium account and retainedearnings account.

29. RESERVES
The nature and purpose of each category of reserves are as follows:
(a) Foreign exchange translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statementsof foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group's presentation currency.
(b) Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the equity-settled share options granted to employees. This reserve is made up of the cumulativevalue of services received from employees recorded on grant of share options.
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employee Share Options Scheme ("ESOS")
The Company's Employee Share Options Scheme ("ESOS") is governed by the Bye-Laws approved by the shareholders at an ExtraordinaryGeneral Meeting held on 28 June 2005. The ESOS was implemented on 19 October 2005 and is to be in force for a period of five yearsfrom the date of implementation.
The salient features of the ESOS are as follows:
i. The ESOS Committee appointed by the Board of Directors to administer the ESOS may at any time and from time to time recommendto the Board any addition or amendment to or deletion of these Bye-Laws as it shall in its discretion think fit and the Board shall have the power by resolution to add, to amend or delete all or any of these Bye-Laws upon such recommendation.
ii. Subject to the discretion of the ESOS Committee, any employee who is at least eighteen years of age, whose employment has beenconfirmed and any executive directors or non-executive directors of the Group, shall be eligible to participate in the ESOS.
iii. The total number of shares to be issued under the ESOS shall not exceed in aggregate 10% of the issued share capital ofthe Company at any point of time during the tenure of the ESOS and out of which not more than 50% of the shares shall be allocated,in aggregate, to executive and non-executive directors and senior management. In addition, not more than 10% of the shares available under the ESOS shall be allocated to any individual director or eligible employee who, either singly or collectively throughpersons connected with the eligible employees, holds 20% or more in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company.
iv. The option price for each share shall be based on the higher of the following:

(a) the weighted average market price of the Company's shares for five market days preceding the date of offer, with a discountthat does not exceed 10% or such other percentage of discount as may be permitted by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhador any other relevant authorities from time to time during the period of the scheme; or
(b) the par value of the Company's shares.

v. The options allocated to the eligible employee shall become exercisable to the extent of one-quarter of the shares granted on eachof the first four anniversaries from the date of the implementation of ESOS provided that the employee has been in continuous servicewith the Group throughout the period unless it falls under Clause 18 of the Bye-Laws of the ESOS. The employees' entitlementsto the options are vested as soon as they become exercisable. The options allocated to the directors of the Company and to certainemployees of the Company and of the Group are exercisable from the grant date.
vi. All new ordinary shares issued upon exercise of the options granted under the ESOS will rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company other than as may be specified in a resolution approving the distribution of dividends priorto their exercise dates.
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTD.)
Employee Share Options Scheme ("ESOS") (Contd.)
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during theyear:

< Number of Share Options >Outstanding at Outstanding at Outstanding at Exercisable atGrant Date 1 January Granted Exercised Forfeited 26 September Adjustment * Exercised Forfeited 31 December 31 December
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '00020072005 Options:Grant 1 15,446 - (6,078) (785) 8,583 17,166 (1,438) - 24,311 18,588

2006 Options:Grant 2 3,194 - (771) (360) 2,063 4,126 (251) (240) 5,698 3,713Grant 3 2,466 - (506) (366) 1,594 3,190 (84) - 4,700 3,822
21,106 - (7,355) (1,511) 12,240 24,482 (1,773) (240) 34,709 26,123

2007 Options:
Grant 4 - 789 (53) (18) 718 1,436 (15) (54) 2,085 2,085

21,106 789 (7,408) (1,529) 12,958 25,918 (1,788) (294) 36,794 28,208

WAEP (RM) 1.12 1.44 1.10 1.16 1.14 0.38 0.37 0.44 0.38 0.38

* Adjustment to share options pursuant to the issue of bonus shares.
< Number of share options >Outstanding at Outstanding at Exercisable at1 January Granted Exercised Forfeited 31 December 31 December'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000

20062005 Options:Grant 1 18,800 - (2,424) (930) 15,446 10,9162006 Options:Grant 2 - 4,080 (117) (769) 3,194 1,554Grant 3 - 2,470 (4) - 2,466 1,681
18,800 6, 550 (2,545) (1,699) 21,106 14,151

WAEP (RM) 1.06 1.27 1.07 1.16 1.12 1.11
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTD.)
Employee Share Options Scheme ("ESOS") (Contd.)
(i) Details of share options outstanding at the end of the year:

Exercise price Exercise periodRM
20072005 Options:Grant 1 0.35* 19.10.2005 - 18.10.20102006 Options:Grant 2 0.43* 07.07.2006 - 18.10.2010Grant 3 0.42* 29.07.2006 - 18.10.20102007 Options:Grant 4 0.48* 29.05.2007 - 18.10.2010
20062005 Options:Grant 1 1.06 19.10.2005 - 18.10.20102006 Options:Grant 2 1.28 07.07.2006 - 18.10.2010Grant 3 1.25 29.07.2006 - 18.10.2010
* Adjusted exercise price pursuant to the issue of bonus shares.

(ii) Share options exercised during the year
As disclosed in Note 28, options exercised during the financial year resulted in the issuance of:
(a) 7,407,600 (2006: 2,545,000) ordinary shares before the bonus issue of shares at an average price of RM1.10 (2006: RM1.07)each. The related weighted average share price at the date of exercise was RM1.63 (2006: RM1.45); and
(b) 1,788,800 ordinary shares subsequent to the bonus issue of shares at an average price of RM0.37 each. The related weightedaverage share price at the date of exercise was RM0.63.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 112 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTD.)
Employee Share Options Scheme ("ESOS") (Contd.)
(iii) Fair value of share options granted during the year

The fair value of share options granted during the year was estimated using a binomial model, taking into account the terms andconditions upon which the options were granted. The fair value of share options measured at grant date and the assumptions are asfollows:
2007 2006 2006Grant 4 Grant 3 Grant 2Grant date 29 May 29 July 7 July2007 2006 2006

Fair value of share options granted (RM) 0.46 0.40 0.43Share price (RM) 1.75 1.44 1.51Exercise price (RM) 1.44 1.25 1.28Expected volatility (%) 33.37 29.31 29.31Option life (years) 3.30 4.22 4.29Risk free rate (%) 3.26 4.21 4.46Expected dividend yield (%) 0.97 1.04 0.99Expected employee exit rate (%) 22 0 - 15 15Expected early exercise price multiple (times) 1.5 1.5 1.5
The expected employee exit rate and the expected early exercise price multiple are based on historical data and is not necessarilyindicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicativeof future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other features of the option grant were incorporated intothe measurement of fair value.

31. RETAINED EARNINGS
Prior to the year of assessment 2008, Malaysian companies adopted the full imputation system. In accordance with the Finance Act 2007which was gazetted on 28 December 2007, companies shall not be entitled to deduct tax on dividend paid, credited or distributed to itsshareholders, and such dividends will be exempted from tax in the hands of the shareholders ("single tier system"). However, there is atransitional period of six years, expiring on 31 December 2013, to allow companies to pay franked dividends to their shareholders underlimited circumstances. Companies also have an irrevocable option to disregard the 108 balance and opt to pay dividends under the singletier system. The change in the tax legislation also provides for the 108 balance to be locked-in as at 31 December 2007 in accordancewith Section 39 of the Finance Act 2007.
The Company did not elect for the irrevocable option to disregard the 108 balance. Accordingly, during the transitional period, the Companymay utilise the credit in the 108 balance as at 31 December 2007 to distribute cash dividend payments to ordinary shareholdingsas defined under the Finance Act 2007. As at 31 December 2007, the Company has sufficient credit in the 108 balance to pay frankeddividends amounting to RM3,539,386 (2006: Nil) out of its retained earnings. If the balance of retained earnings of RM181,817 were tobe distributed as dividends, the Company may distribute such dividends under the single tier system.
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32. BORROWINGS
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Short term borrowings (secured):Bank overdrafts 1,908,410 2,943,501 - -Bankers' acceptances - 6,100,000 - -Hire purchase payables (Note 33) 55,776 16,605 - -Term loans 18,150,750 15,270,450 - -
20,114,936 24,330,556 - -

Short term borrowings (unsecured):Commercial papers 79,266,562 - 79,266,562 -

Long term borrowings (secured):Hire purchase payables (Note 33) 14,047 22,449 - -Term loans 41,434,394 43,895,973 - -
41,448,441 43,918,422 - -

Total borrowings:Bank overdrafts 1,908,410 2,943,501 - -Bankers' acceptances - 6,100,000 - -Hire purchase payables (Note 33) 69,823 39,054 - -Term loans 59,585,144 59,166,423 - -Commercial papers 79,266,562 - 79,266,562 -
140,829,939 68,248,978 79,266,562 -

The secured borrowings, other than hire purchase payables, are secured by the following:
(a) legal charges over certain freehold land, leasehold land and buildings of the Group as disclosed in Note 13(a) and Note 14;
(b) certain deposits with licensed banks (Note 27);
(c) corporate guarantees of RM125.78 million (2006: RM113.90 million) by the Company; and
(d) joint and several guarantees by certain directors of the Company.
Other information on financial risks of borrowing are disclosed in Note 40.
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33. HIRE-PURCHASE PAYABLES
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

Future minimum hire purchase payments:Not later than 1 year 70,065 19,344Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 17,412 19,344Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years - 4,810
Total future minimum hire purchase payments 87,477 43,498Less: Future finance charges (17,654) (4,444)
Present value of hire purchase payables 69,823 39,054

Analysis of present value of hire purchase payables:Not later than 1 year 55,776 16,605Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 14,047 16,605Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years - 5,844
69,823 39,054Less: Amount due within 12 months (Note 32) (55,776) (16,605)

Amount due after 12 months (Note 32) 14,047 22,449

The Group has hire purchase contracts for motor vehicles (Note 13(c)). There are no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering intothese hire purchase contracts and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.
Other information on financial risks of hire purchase payables are disclosed in Note 40.

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
GROUP2007 2006RM RM

At 1 January 714,594 295,000Recognised in income statement (Note 10) (80,287) 419,594
At 31 December 634,307 714,594
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34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTD.)
The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities of the Group:

Property,plant and Developmentequipment costs TotalRM RM RM
At 1 January 2007 544,739 219,000 763,739Recognised in income statement 87,725 220,000 307,725
At 31 December 2007 632,464 439,000 1,071,464

At 1 January 2006 301,500 - 301,500Recognised in income statement 243,239 219,000 462,239
At 31 December 2006 544,739 219,000 763,739

Deferred tax assets of the Group:
Unused taxlosses and Property,unabsorbed plant andcapital equipmentallowances Accruals Receivables expensed out TotalRM RM RM RM RM

At 1 January 2007 (23,145) (26,000) - - (49,145)Recognised in income statement (129,855) (64,000) (194,000) (157) (388,012)
At 31 December 2007 (153,000) (90,000) (194,000) (157) (437,157)

At 1 January 2006 (6,500) - - - (6,500)Recognised in income statement (16,645) (26,000) - - (42,645)
At 31 December 2006 (23,145) (26,000) - - (49,145)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 116 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTD.)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM
Unused tax losses 225,000 451,000 186,000 186,000Unabsorbed capital allowances 39,000 39,000 39,000 39,000

264,000 490,000 225,000 225,000

The unused tax losses of the Group amounting to RM39,000 (2006: Nil) are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of asubsidiary in Singapore, subject to the agreement with the tax authority. The unused tax losses of the Group amounting to RM Nil (2006:RM265,000) are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of a subsidiary in Malaysia, subject to no substantial change inshareholdings under the Income Tax Act, 1967, and guidelines issued by the tax authority.
The unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances of the Company are available for offsetting against future taxable profits subjectto no substantial change in shareholdings under the Income Tax Act, 1967, and guidelines issued by the tax authority.

35. TRADE PAYABLES
GROUP2007 2006RM RMTrade payablesThird parties 67,358,287 54,535,922Related parties 1,851,037 2,496,757

69,209,324 57,032,679

Included in trade payables is RM5,278,287 (2006: Nil) which is being paid by monthly installments and interest is charged at 9.7% (2006:Nil) per annum.
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from one month to three months.
Further details on related party transactions are disclosed in Note 37.
Other information on financial risk of trade payables are disclosed in Note 40.
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36. OTHER PAYABLES
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Amount due to related parties 55,684 1,841,488 - -Advances received from customers 1,686,405 4,733,077 - -Accruals 11,210,898 6,636,786 340,267 475,233Deposits received 188,602 2,052,276 - -Interest payables - 3,171 - -Sundry payables 1,470,892 1,442,617 32,063 -
14,612,481 16,709,415 372,330 475,233

The amounts due to related parties are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand. These amounts are unsecured and are to besettled in cash.
Further details on related party transactions are disclosed in Note 37.

37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company had the following transactions with related parties during the financial year:
Note 2007 2006RM RM

GROUP
Related parties*:- Sales of products (i) 1,878,618 5,300,617- Purchase of products (ii) 538,058 10,400,714- Purchase of plant and equipment (iii) 2,414,279 3,259,593- Purchase of spare parts and services (ii) 183,354 674,930- Repair and maintenance income (i) 262,278 205,052- Operating lease income (iv) 13,527 27,417- Operating lease expense (iv) 180,000 75,000
Associates:- Purchase of products (ii) 1,517,566 441,493- Purchase of plant and equipment (iii) 98,304 114,750
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 118 DREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)

37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTD.)
Note 2007 2006RM RM

COMPANY
Subsidiaries:- Dividend income 33,439,860 5,896,840- Interest income (v) 1,620,564 525,000- Operating lease expense (iv) 60,000 60,000

* Related parties are corporations in which certain directors of the Company have substantial interest in these corporations.
(i) The sale of products and rendering of services to related parties were made according to the prices and conditions similar to thoseoffered to the major customers of the Group.
(ii) The purchase of products and rendering of services from related parties were made according to the prices and conditions similar tothose offered by these related companies to their major customers.
(iii) The purchase of plant and equipment from related parties were made according to the prices similar to those offered by the relatedcompanies to third parties.
(iv) The leasing of premises from/to the related parties were made at market rates.
(v) The interest income arose from the amounts owing by the subsidiaries to the Company.
(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Short-term employee benefits 3,129,296 2,452,050 438,773 1,118,270Post-employment benefits:Defined contribution plan 303,530 229,446 27,696 82,368Share-based payment 230,422 635,050 9,134 485,303
3,663,248 3,316,546 475,603 1,685,941
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTD.)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (Contd.)
Included in the total key management personnel are:

GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM
Directors' remuneration (Note 9) 2,724,734 2,528,036 446,096 1,420,541

Executive directors of the Group and the Company and other members of key management have been granted the following number ofoptions under the Employee Share Options Scheme ("ESOS").
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006

At 1 January 10,230,000 10,640,000 8,520,000 8,600,000Granted 783,000 900,000 - 900,000Exercised (4,840,000) (1,310,000) (4,370,000) (980,000)Forfeited (300,000) - - -Adjustment for bonus issue 12,315,000 - 8,300,000 -
At 31 December 18,188,000 10,230,000 12,450,000 8,520,000

The share options were granted on the same terms and conditions as those offered to other employees of the Group (Note 30).

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
GROUP COMPANY2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Capital expenditureApproved but not contracted for:Property, plant and equipment 104,220,000 64,697,000 - -Investments in associates 12,339,000 - - -Share of capital commitments of jointly controlled entities 768,000 - 652,000 -
117,327,000 64,697,000 652,000 -
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) RGB Sdn. Bhd., a subsidiary of the Group, had given an undertaking to Mpumalanga Gaming Board, South Africa, on 26 November 1998 to provide funding for Magna Eden Sdn. Bhd. for whatever amount is required in respect of Magna Eden Sdn. Bhd.'s investment in Magic Slots South Africa (Pty.) Ltd. in relation to the South Africa slot gaming operations. As at balance sheet date, the subsidiary has not been requested to provide any funding whatsoever in respect of the above undertaking.
(b) The Company has given unsecured corporate guarantees to certain financial institutions for banking facilities granted to itssubsidiaries for a limit of up to RM125.78 million (2006: RM124.71 million) of which RM61,415,764 (2006: RM66,159,784) was utilised at balance sheet date.
(c) The Company has given unsecured corporate guarantees to certain trade creditors of its subsidiaries for a limit of up to RM29 million (2006: Nil) of which RM3,256,965 (2006: Nil) was utilised at balance sheet date.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are available for the developmentof the Group's businesses whilst managing its interest rate risks, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. It is, and has been throughout the year underreview, the Group's policy that no trading in derivative financial instruments shall be undertaken.
(b) Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. As the Group has no significant interest-bearing financial assets, the Group's income and operating cash flows aresubstantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest-bearing financial assets are mainly short term in nature and have been mostly placed in deposits.
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings at floating rates expose the Group tocash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Interest rates of bank borrowings are mainly subject to fluctuations in the banks' base lending rates.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD.)
(b) Interest Rate Risk (Contd.)

The following tables set out the carrying amounts, the average effective interest rates per annum during the financial year and theremaining maturities of the Group's and the Company's financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk:
Note Interest Rate Within 1 Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years 3 - 4 Years 4 - 5 Years Total(%) RM RM RM RM RM RM

At 31 December 2007
GROUP
Fixed rateTrade receivables 21 9.7 6,106,345 - - - - 6,106,345Lease receivables 22 6.5 1,921,094 2,064,303 2,189,030 550,588 - 6,725,015Commercial papers 32 4.1 (79,266,562) - - - - (79,266,562)Hire purchase payables 33 23.5 (55,776) (14,047) - - - (69,823)Trade payables 35 9.7 (5,278,287) - - - - (5,278,287)

Floating rateDeposits withlicensed banks 27 3.3 7,936,989 - - - - 7,936,989Bank overdrafts 32 8.1 (1,908,410) - - - - (1,908,410)Term loans 32 7.4 (18,150,750) (18,150,750) (14,208,875) (7,071,625) (2,003,144) (59,585,144)

COMPANY
Fixed rateDue from subsidiaries 24 4.1 73,500,000 - - - - 73,500,000

Floating rateDeposits withlicensed banks 27 3.4 5,606,935 - - - - 5,606,935Commercial papers 32 4.1 (79,266,562) - - - - (79,266,562)
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD.)
(b) Interest Rate Risk (Contd.)

Note Interest Rate Within 1 Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years 3 - 4 Years 4 - 5 Years Total(%) RM RM RM RM RM RM
At 31 December 2006
GROUP
Fixed rateLease receivables 22 6.5 1,921,094 2,054,064 2,197,266 2,351,652 488,115 9,012,191Hire purchase payables 33 6.2 (16,605) (16,605) (5,844) - - (39,054)

Floating rateDeposits withlicensed banks 27 3.3 4,793,449 - - - - 4,793,449Bank overdrafts 32 8.2 (2,943,501) - - - - (2,943,501)Bankers' acceptances 32 5.0 (6,100,000) - - - - (6,100,000)Term loans 32 8.0 (15,270,450) (15,270,450) (15,270,450) (11,067,300) (2,287,773) (59,166,423)

COMPANY
Floating rateDeposits withlicensed banks 27 3.1 2,464,181 - - - - 2,464,181

(c) Foreign Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to transactional currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency otherthan the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar, Australian Dollar, Euro, Pound Sterling, Singapore Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar, Japanese Yen, Philippine Peso, Macau Pataca, Thai Baht and Mongolia Tughrik. Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities together with expected cash flows from highly probable purchases and sales give rise to foreign exchange exposures.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD.)
(c) Foreign Currency Risk (Contd.)

The net unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group companies that are not denominated in their functionalcurrencies are as follows:
< Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities) Held in Non-Functional Currency >
United Hong

Functional Currency States Australian Pound Singapore Ringgit Kong Japanese Philippine Macau Thai Mongoliaof Group Companies Dollar Dollar Euro Sterling Dollar Malaysia Dollar Yen Peso Pataca Baht Tughrik Total
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

At 31 December2007
Ringgit Malaysia 102,661,580 3,722,793 1,068,126 2,301 619,290 - 601,077 26,041 (281) - 839 - 108,701,766
United States

Dollar - (1,632,721) 6,282,120 - 105,930 (700,094) 273,997 1,555,206 4,426,500 3 12,938,834 (21,124) 23,228,651Hong Kong
Dollar - (3,412) - - - - - - - 6,187 - - 2,775

102,661,580 2,086,660 7,350,246 2,301 725,220 (700,094) 875,074 1,581,247 4,426,219 6,190 12,939,673 (21,124) 131,933,192

< Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities) Held in Non-Functional Currency >
United HongFunctional Currency States Australian Pound Singapore Ringgit Kong Japanese Philippine Thai Mongolia

of Group Companies Dollar Dollar Euro Sterling Dollar Malaysia Dollar Yen Peso Baht Tughrik Total
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

At 31 December 2006
Ringgit Malaysia 18,497,100 (5,902,400) 4,637,418 2,319 148,529 - 112,114 1,825 5,726 1,365 - 17,503,996
United States Dollar - (4,726,825) (2,433,117) - (501,901) (295,176) (20,655) (689) 2,053,455 6,393,132 284,351 752,575
Hong Kong Dollar - - - - (20,267) 172,878 - - - - - 152,611

18,497,100 (10,629,225) 2,204,301 2,319 (373,639) (122,298) 91,459 1,136 2,059,181 6,394,497 284,351 18,409,182

The net unhedged financial assets of the Company that are not denominated in its functional currency as at 31 December 2007 amounted to RM95,611,998 (2006: RM2,935,200).
As at balance sheet date, the Group had not entered into any forward foreign exchange contracts.

(d) Liquidity Risk
The Group manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as to ensure that all refinancing,repayment and funding needs are met. As part of its overall liquidity management, the Group maintains sufficient levels of cash orcash equivalents to meet its working capital requirements. In addition, the Group strives to maintain available banking facilities at a reasonable level to its overall debt position.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD.)
(e) Credit Risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy thirdparties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who trade on credit terms are subject to credit reference checks by the CreditControl Department. In addition, the Credit Control Department analyses and reviews the credit worthiness and standing of all customers regularly. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis via the Group's management reporting procedures.
The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise mainly cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of thecounterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets.
The Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty nor does it have any major concentration of credit risk related to any financial instruments, other than as disclosed in Note 21.

(f) Fair Values
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities of the Group and of the Company at the balance sheet date approximated their fair values except for the followings:

GROUPNote Carrying FairAmount ValueRM RM
At 31 December 2007Non-current unquoted shares 18 4,000 *Non-current receivables 23 714,790 616,398

At 31 December 2006Non-current unquoted shares 18 4,000 *Non-current receivables 23 2,148,162 1,833,306

* It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the Group's non-current unquoted investments because of the lack of quotedmarket prices and the inability to estimate fair value without incurring excessive costs. However, the Group believes that the carrying amount represents the recoverable value.
The methods and assumptions used by management to determine fair values of financial instruments other than those whose carrying amounts reasonably approximate their fair values are as follows:
Non-Current Receivables and Borrowings
Fair value has been determined using discounted estimated cash flows. The discount rates used are the current market incrementallending rates for similar types of lending, borrowing and leasing arrangements.
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Reporting Format

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Group's risks and rates of return are affectedpredominantly by differences in the products and services produced. Secondary information is reported geographically. The operatingbusinesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segmentrepresenting a strategic business unit that offers different products and services.
(b) Business Segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:
(i) Sales and marketing Sales and marketing of gaming and amusement machinesand systems and related products.
(ii) Technical support and Technical support, maintenance, and management of gamingmanagement services and amusement machines and equipment.
Other business segments include renting of property, manufacturing, research and development, gaming and leisure entertainment,neither of which constitutes a separately reportable segment.
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by business segment:

TechnicalsupportSales and andmarketing management Others Eliminations ConsolidatedRM RM RM RM RM
2007RevenueSales to external customers 152,734,769 119,214,115 4,357,656 - 276,306,540Inter-segment sales 124,665 - 360,000 (484,665) -
Total revenue 152,859,434 119,214,115 4,717,656 (484,665) 276,306,540

ResultsSegment results 15,769,335 41,784,170 (2,285,401) - 55,268,104Unallocated expenses (8,429,525)
Operating profit 46,838,579Finance costs (6,944,382)Share of profit of jointly controlled entities 106,236 106,236Share of loss of associates (709,635) (709,635)
Profit before tax 39,290,798Income tax expense (977,184)
Profit for the year 38,313,614
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD.)
(b) Business Segments (Contd.)

TechnicalsupportSales and andmarketing management Others Eliminations ConsolidatedRM RM RM RM RM
AssetsSegment assets 99,231,777 253,359,294 28,471,054 - 381,062,125Investment in jointly controlled entities 1,592,374 1,592,374Investments in associates 3,860,051 3,860,051Unallocated assets 16,112,326
Total assets 402,626,876

LiabilitiesSegment liabilities 58,077,046 21,867,174 2,363,536 - 82,307,756Unallocated liabilities 144,309,179
Total liabilities 226,616,935

Other informationCapital expenditure 85,996 112,828,007 7,832,508 - 120,746,511Unallocated capital expenditure 975,060
121,721,571

Depreciation 265,558 40,359,276 127,725 - 40,752,559Unallocated depreciation 256,255
41,008,814

Amortisation - - 308,732 - 308,732

Impairment losses - 284,244 2,542 - 286,786

31 December 2007



41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD.)
(b) Business Segments (Contd.)

TechnicalsupportSales and andmarketing management Others Eliminations ConsolidatedRM RM RM RM RM
Non-cash expenseother than depreciation,amortisation andimpairment losses 1,709,574 5,930,395 522,827 - 8,162,796Unallocatednon-cash expenseother than depreciation,amortisation andimpairment losses 256,477

8,419,273

2006RevenueSales to external customers 121,299,367 89,513,238 4,567,683 - 215,380,288Inter-segment sales - 566,389 360,000 (926,389) -
Total revenue 121,299,367 90,079,627 4,927,683 (926,389) 215,380,288

ResultsSegment results 9,348,333 37,142,043 (117,073) - 46,373,303Unallocated expenses (8,713,591)
Operating profit 37,659,712Finance costs (5,050,377)Share of profit ofassociates (restated) 669,811 669,811
Profit before tax 33,279,146Income tax expense (1,808,918)
Profit for the year 31,470,228
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD.)
(b) Business Segments (Contd.)

TechnicalsupportSales and andmarketing management Others Eliminations ConsolidatedRM RM RM RM RM
AssetsSegment assets 83,526,896 179,122,750 11,181,454 - 273,831,100Investments in associates (restated) 1,273,660 1,273,660Unallocated assets 8,860,631
Total assets 283,965,391
LiabilitiesSegment liabilities 46,164,584 25,891,252 77,238 - 72,133,074Unallocated liabilities 73,133,425
Total liabilities 145,266,499
Other informationCapital expenditure 1,038,229 59,227,809 880,276 - 61,146,314Unallocated capital expenditure 324,014

61,470,328
Depreciation (restated) 107,707 30,564,269 100,836 - 30,772,812Unallocated depreciation 446,112

31,218,924
Amortisation (restated) - - 153,556 - 153,556
Non-cash expenseother than depreciation,amortisation andimpairment losses 896,351 2,401,564 373,844 - 3,671,759Unallocated non-cashexpense other thandepreciation, amortisationand impairment losses 868,032

4,539,791
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD.)
(c) Geographical Segments

The Group's geographical segments are based on the location of the Group's assets. Sales to external customers are based on geographical location of its customers.
Although the Group's business segments are managed on a worldwide basis, they operate in seven main geographical areas of the world. In Malaysia, its home country, the Group's areas of operation are principally sales and marketing and technical support andmanagement of gaming and amusement machines, renting of property, manufacturing and research and development.
The Group also operates in other countries in the Asia Pacific region:
- Macau - mainly sales and marketing.- Cambodia - mainly sales and marketing, technical support and management and gaming and leisure.- The Philippines - mainly sales and marketing and technical support and management.- Vietnam - mainly sales and marketing and technical support and management.- Singapore - mainly sales and marketing and technical support and management.- Mongolia - mainly technical support and management.- Laos - mainly technical support and management.
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical segment:

Revenue bygeographical segments2007 2006RM RM
Macau 32,574,362 39,562,249Cambodia 102,721,757 85,857,712Malaysia 27,914,995 31,192,086The Philippines 93,499,561 41,853,070Vietnam 9,653,153 8,631,209Singapore 5,038,786 5,398,542Mongolia - 1,355,627Laos 2,473,596 -Other countries 2,430,330 1,529,793

276,306,540 215,380,288
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD.)
(c) Geographical Segments (Contd.)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and capital expenditure by geographical segments:
Segment assets Capital expenditure2007 2006 2007 2006RM RM RM RM

Macau 11,047,690 29,580,107 - 24,839Cambodia 200,518,515 110,758,901 108,456,783 36,947,399Malaysia 47,032,780 50,700,934 3,006,478 1,930,734The Philippines 102,886,460 55,020,888 5,307,292 16,355,613Vietnam 8,130,960 8,923,562 3,543,476 132,453Singapore 400,837 4,642,963 - -Mongolia 211,896 5,825,875 - 5,755,276Laos 1,222,587 - 432,482 -Other countries 9,610,400 8,377,870 - -
381,062,125 273,831,100 120,746,511 61,146,314

42. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(a) On 31 January 2008, the listing of and quotation for the entire issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was transferred from the MESDAQ Market to the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
(b) On 19 February 2008, the Company acquired 1 ordinary share of HKD1, representing the entire issued and paid-up share capital ofFrontier Wish International Limited ("FWIL"), a company incorporated in Hong Kong for a purchase consideration HKD1 (approximatelyRM0.41). The intended activities of FWIL are investment and property holding, entertainment and leisure as well as international business.
(c) On 19 February 2008, Macrocept Sdn. Bhd. ("MCSB"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired an additional 20% equity interest in an associate, Chateau de Bavet Club Co., Ltd ("CDBC"), a company incorporated in Cambodia for a total consideration ofUSD1,000 (approximately RM3,127). As a result, CDBC became a subsidiary of MCSB.
(d) On 6 March 2008, RGB Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company had entered into a agreement with OMMCO InvestmentCo., Ltd., a corporation incorporated in Japan to co-operate for the purpose of investment in the projects in Cambodia by way of thesetting up of a company, RGB OMMCO Ltd., incorporated in the Federal Territory of Labuan, Malaysia.
(e) On 25 March 2008, MCSB had entered into the Contract on The Transfer of Shares and Slot Machine Licenses with a third party to acquire 100% of the equity interest in Club 88 Co., Ltd. ("Club 88") and the slot machine licenses held by Club 88 for a totalconsideration of USD145,000 (approximately RM463,782) being USD5,000 (approximately RM15,992) for the Shares and USD140,000 (approximately RM447,790) for the slot machine licenses, business license and any other approvals by relevant authorities and regulatory bodies to commence business in Club 88. On 27 March 2008, the shares in Club 88 have been transferred to MCSB and Club 88 became a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCSB.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at G Hotel, 168APersiaran Gurney, 10250 Penang, Malaysia on Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 10.00 am for the following purposes:
A G E N D A
As Ordinary Business:
1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.
2. To approve the payment of a first and final dividend of 0.68 sen per ordinary share of 10 sen each which consists of 0.50 sen less 26% income tax and 0.18 sen tax exempt dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2007.
3. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of RM176,000 for the financial year ended 31 December 2007.
4. To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Article 100 (1) of the Company’s Articles of Association and who, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election:

4.1 Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T.4.2 Mr. Chuah Kim Chiew
5. To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

As Special Business:
6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolution:

Authority under Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 for the Directors to issue shares
“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act, 1965, the Articles of Association of the Company and the approvals of the relevant government / regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby authorised,pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, to allot and issue shares in the Company at any time until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to such person or persons, upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion deemed fit,provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being and that the Directors are also empowered to obtain the approval from the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the listing and quotation for the additional shares to be issued.”

7. To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Act, 1965.

Resolution I

Resolution 2

Resolution 3

Resolution 4Resolution 5
Resolution 6

Resolution 7
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NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that a first and final dividend of 0.68 sen per ordinary share of 10 sen eachwhich consists of 0.50 sen less 26% income tax and 0.18 sen tax exempt dividend for the financial year ended31 December 2007, if approved, will be paid on 18 August 2008 to depositors registered in the Record ofDepositors of the Company on 28 July 2008.
A depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in respect of:
a) Shares transferred into the depositor’s securities account before 4.00 pm on 28 July 2008 in respect of ordinary transfers; andb) Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the Rules of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
By Order of the Board
LAM VOON KEAN (MIA 4793)LEE YAP KUAN (MAICSA 7003482)
Joint SecretariesPenang6 May 2008
Notes:
Appointment of Proxy
1. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b)&(c) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.2. For a proxy to be valid, the Form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, Suite 2-1, 2nd Floor, Menara Penang Garden, 42-A Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 Penang, Malaysia not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.3. A member shall be entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend and vote at the same meeting.4. Where a member appoints two (2) or more proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy.5. If the appointor is a corporation, the Form of Proxy must be executed under the corporation’s seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.6. Where a member of the Company is an authorized nominee as defined under the Central Depositories Act, it may appoint at least one proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.
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Explanatory Note on Special Business
Resolution 7Authority under section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 for the Directors to issue shares
The Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed under agenda 6, if approved, will give the Directors of the Companyauthority to issue shares in the Company up to an amount not exceeding 10% of the total issued capital ofthe Company for the time being for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interest ofthe Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the shareholders of the Company in general meetingwill expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH8.28(2) OF BURSA MALAYSIA SECURITIES BERHAD LISTING REQUIREMENTS
1. Retirement and re-election of the Directors at the Fifth Annual General Meeting

Directors retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 100(1) of the Articles of Association and seeking re-election are as follows:
(a) Dato’ Mahinder Singh Dulku, D.S.P.N., P.K.T.(b) Mr. Chuah Kim Chiew
The details of the Directors who are seeking re-election are set out in their personal profiles under Profile of Directors in this Annual Report.
Shareholdings of the said Directors above in the Company and its subsidiaries are disclosed under the Analysis of Shareholdings in this Annual Report.

2. Fifth Annual General Meeting of Dreamgate Corporation Bhd.
Place : G Hotel, 168A Persiaran Gurney, 10250 PenangDay, Date & Time : Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 10.00 am



*I/We .................................................................................................................. NRIC No./Company No...........................................................
of ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................
being a *member/members of Dreamgate Corporation Bhd. (603831-K) ("the Company"), hereby appoint ..........................................................
................................................................................................................................. NRIC No. ..........................................................................
of .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
or failing *him/her, ...........................................................................................................................NRIC No..............................................of
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

or failing *him/her, the *CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us and on *my/our behalf at the Fifth Annual GeneralMeeting of the Company to be held at G Hotel, 168A Persiaran Gurney, 10250 Penang, Malaysia on Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 10.00 am andat any adjournment thereof.
(Please indicate with an "X" in the spaces provided below as to how you wish your votes to be cast. If no specific direction as to voting is given,the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at *his/her discretion.)

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
FOR
AGAINST

Signed this ......................................... day of ......................................... 2008 ........................................................Common Seal/Signature of Member
Note:
1. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b)&(c) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.2. For a proxy to be valid, the Form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, Suite 2-1, 2nd Floor, Menara Penang Garden, 42-A Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 Penang, Malaysia not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.3. A member shall be entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend and vote at the same meeting.4. Where a member appoints two (2) or more proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy.5. If the appointor is a corporation, the Form of Proxy must be executed under the corporation’s seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.6. Where a member of the Company is an authorized nominee as defined under the Central Depositories Act, it may appoint at least one proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

* Strike out whichever is not applicable.

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK CAPITALS)
(FULL ADDRESS)

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK CAPITALS)
(FULL ADDRESS)

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK CAPITALS)
(FULL ADDRESS)

F o r m  o f  P r o x y Number of Share Held

Dreamgate Corporation Bhd. (603831-K)(Incorporated in Malaysia)



To:The Company SecretariesDREAMGATE CORPORATION BHD (603831-K)Suite 2-1, 2nd Floor, Menara Penang Garden42-A Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 Penang, Malaysia

AFFIX STAMP

then fold here

first fold here

fold this flap for sealing




